


is leading source of geospatial information and insight for decision

makers and analysts who need clear understanding of our changing world to

protect lives manage risk and optimize resources

Each day organizations in defense and intelligence public safety critical infrastructure energy and online

media rely on GeoEyes imagery tools and expertise to support important missions around the globe Widely

recognized as pioneer in high-resolution satellite imagery GeoEye has evolved into complete provider of

geospatial intelligence solutions GeoEyes ability to collect process and analyze massive amounts of geospa
tial data allows our customers to quickly see precise changes on the ground and anticipate where events

may occur in the future GeoEye is public company listed on NASDAQ as GEOY and is headquartered in

Herndon Virginia with more than 750 employees worldwide Learn more at

is to enable our customers success by consistently providing

superior quality location intelligence and services resulting in timely and vital

insightsanywhere anytime

Ou is to be the worlds best source for location information and insight



Message from Matt

ln 2011 GeoEye pursued series of strategic initiatives to

position the company for long-term growth Our goal is to

become an indispensable cost-effective source of geospatial

information and insight for governments and commercial

customers around the world We have taken steps to expand

our Earth-imaging constellation diversify our revenue stream

and add the complementary expertise and technology neces

sary to deliver complete geospatial solutions

The company passed number of critical milestones in 2011

including successful final Critical Design Review for our

GeoEye-2 satellite This brings us closer to launching the

satellite on time and on budget in the first half of 2013

GeoEye-2 is being funded in part by our EnhancedView

contract which the National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency

NGA awarded the company in August 2010

EnhancedView represents unique value proposition for the

U.S government This innovative public/private partnership

provides cost-effective priority access to high-resolution

unclassified imagery that can be shared broadly to support

national
security requirements Under EnhancedView firm

fixed-price program GeoEye collects imagery for the U.S

government via our state-of-the-art commercial satellites

under one-year Service Level Agreement SLA renewable

for total of ten years

Despite its advantages we realize no U.S government pro

gram will escape scrutiny during coming budgetary cycles

Accordingly we took number of steps this year to diversify

our revenue and grow our company

We strengthened our commercial and international

business

We expanded the number of U.S government agencies

relying on GeoEye products and services and diversified

our U.S customer base

We set the stage for new high-value-added product and

service introductions by GeoEye Analytics

Our results this year reflect our emphas on creating broad

platform for growth GeoEye produced revenues of $356.4

million in 2011 representing an increase of eight percent over

the previous year Despite investments in our satellite and

other new technology we continued to control costs exceed

ing our target for Adjusted EBITDA margins of 50 percent plus

GeoEye ended the year financially stable company with

strong balance sheet and cash and short-term investments

on hand of $198 million
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develop new technologies and

new relationships that wili allow

us to expand and diversify our

customer base We will deliver

er-d-toend so utions that are

unmatched in the industry

In 2011 we demonstrated our abty to successfully grow

our commercial and international business by adding new

accounts and deepening existing relationships

We expanded our relationship with Google which provides

the worlds most popular online mapping service GeoEye

signed multi-year enterprise agreement
with Google to

license access to Google Earth Builder Googles cloud-based

map-publishing platform This quickly puts our high-resolution

imagery into the hands of large numbers of users

We announced series of agreements
this year with Esri the

worlds leading provider of geographic information systems

software Esri has licensed 50 million square kilometers of

GeoEyes high-resolution IKONOS archive imagery to augment

its ArcGlS online global imagery base map GeoEye and Esri

also introduced GeoEye Image Pack for Esris enterprise

license agreement customers making full-resolution imagery

accessible to small municipal and county governments public

safety agencies and utilities Our relationships with Google

and Esri helped generate excellent U.S commercial revenue

growth of 38 percent for 2011

We are also doing good job of growing and monetizing

our production business in the commercial marketplace Our

recent multi-million dollar multi-year agreement to provide

Clear insight through the worlds highest resolution most

accurate unclassified Earth imagery

our 3D Airports family of value-added geospatial products to

GE Aviation is an example of this It underscores our ability
to

find and enter new markets where our strengths acquiring

the highest resolution and highest accuracy commercial data

in the world and our deep aeronautical expertise are valued

GeoEyes developing relationship with ScanEx leading

Russian reseller illustrates the success of the companys

efforts to extend its reach in international markets We

signed multi-year multi-million dollar agreement
with

ScanExs Russian partner to support large cadastral

mapping project to help the Russian government efficiently

administer property rights across the country GeoEye also

expanded its distributor relationships in Mexico South

America French-speaking Africa the Middle East and the

Far East
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In 2011 we renewed our SLA with the NGA and took

number of steps to extend our reach into different govern

ment agencies

As part of our 2010 SLA we delivered GeoEyes EnhancedView

Web Hosting Service WHS which provides end users with

secure online access to unclassified high-resolution imagery

within hours of its collection The EnhancedView WHS is

powered by GeoEyes online access platform EyeQTM This



Deep insight through intelligent in-depth processing and analysis

of imagery and geospatial data

innovative service provided timely insight for warfighters and

first responders reacting to geopolitical crises and natural

disasters in 2011

We also received two new awards worth more than $25 mil

lion for our production service business Both awards demon

strate the governments reliance on our geospatial expertise

and our ability to support variety of mission requirements

by quickly delivering solutions that combine GeoEye imagery

with third-party geospatial data

At the end of 2010 GeoEye purchased SPADAC an industry

leader in geospatial analytics giving us approximately 40

new U.S government customers outside the NGA Now

known as GeoEye Analytics it supports counterterrorism

and law enforcement missions across the national security

community In many cases our analytic experts process

hundreds of layers of geospatial data to discover patterns

that help our customers anticipate where events may occur

Currently nearly half of GeoEye Analytics revenue is gener

ated by the U.S Special Operations Command an organiza

tion that is receiving increased funding from the Department

of Defense Looking forward we believe that combining our

Earth imagery and deep analytics expertise with enabling

technology like EyeQ will produce growing source of

revenue for our commercial business

In 2012 we will continue to develop new technologies and

new relationships that will allow us to expand and diversify

our customer base At the same time we will strengthen our

capabilities delivering end-to-end solutions that are unmatched

in the industry The added capacity and enhanced capabilities

of GeoEye-2 epitomize this strategy Our goal is to help our

customers see understand and respond to change in ways

that allow them to effectively accomplish their missions at the

lowest possible cost

These initiatives set the stage for significant growth for our

company in 2013 and beyond would like to express my

appreciation to our investors for their steadfast confidence

and to our highly skilled highly motivated employees who

every day take our goal of elevating insight to new heights

President and CEO
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Adjusted EBITDA

dol ars in thousands

Stockholders Equity

dol ars thousands

dollars in thousands except per share amounts 2007 2008 2009 2010

$183023 $146659 $271102 330345

68005 10348 14488 47989

28470 26615 32061 24637

28470 26615 32061 22747

162 148 171 .05

1.44 1.36 1.55 1.02

100743 39707 132172 176928

60159 127937 79090 233736

234324 110546 208872 333357

853090 794605 947207 1269085

246789 247502 380594 508160

193209 230404 279955 443243

Revenues

Income before provision benefit for income taxes

Net income

Net income available to common stockholders

Earnings per common sharebasic

Earnings per common sharediluted

Adjusted EBITDA

Capital expenditures

Cash cash equivalents and short-term investments

Total assets

Long-term debt

Stockholders equity

Adjusted EBITDA is non GAAP financial measurement See reconciliation of Net Income to Adusted EBITDA in 1mm Selecred Financial Data in our

Form 10-K

330345

271102 132172

100 /43

183023
279955

146659
230404

39 707

Revenues

dol9rs in thousands
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 0-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein include forward-looking

statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides safe harbor for certain forward-looking

statements as long as they are identified as forward-looking and are accompanied by meaningful cautionary statements

identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the expectations expressed or implied in

the forward-looking statements Without limitation the words anticipates believes estimates expects intends

plans will and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements All statements that address

operating performance events or developments that we expect or anticipate will occur in the future including statements

relating to growth expected levels of expenditures and statements about future operating results are forward-looking

statements Similarly statements that describe our business strategy outlook objectives plans intentions or goals also are

forward-looking statements All such forward-looking statements and those presented elsewhere by our management from

time to time are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in

forward-looking statements These risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to those described in Risk Factors

included in this Annual Report The following list represents some but not necessarily all of the factors that could cause

actual results to differ from historical results or those anticipated or predicted by these forward-looking statements

changes or delays in Congressional appropriations or uncertainty as to the completion of the federal budget

process

risks associated with operating our in-orbit satellites

satellite launch failures satellite launch and construction delays and in-orbit failures or reduced performance

the number of commercial satellite launch opportunities available in any given time period that could impact

our ability to timely schedule future launches and the prices we have to pay for such launches

possible future losses on satellites that are not adequately covered by insurance

our ability to obtain new satellite insurance policies with financially viable insurance carriers on commercially

reasonable terms or at all as well as the ability of our insurance carriers to fulfill their obligations

termination suspension or other changes in purchase levels under our contracts with U.S government agencies

general U.S and international economic business and political conditions

domestic and international government regulation

market acceptance of our products and services

our ability to maintain and protect our Earth imagery content and our image archives against damage

changes in our revenue backlog or expected revenue backlog for future services

pricing pressure and overcapacity in the markets in which we compete

the competitive environment in which we operate as some of our competitors may have greater financial

personnel and operating resources

inadequate access to capital markets or other financing

customer defaults on their obligations owed to us

our international operations and other uncertainties associated with doing business internationally

as well as other factors disclosed in Part Item 1A Risk Factors and Part II Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and other

factors beyond our control These cautionary statements should not be construed by you to be exhaustive and are made only

as of the date of this report We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements or cautionary

factors except as required by law

Trademarks

We own or have rights to various copyrights trademarks and trade names used in our business including the

following GEOEYE IKONOS MJ HARDEN ORBIMAGE ORBVIEW ROADTRACKER GEOEYE

FOUI4DATIONtm GEOPROFESSIONALtm GEOSTEREOtm GEOFUSEtm EYEQtm EYEONtm SEASTARtm

SEASTAR FISHERIES INFORMATION SERVICEsm MARINE INFORMATION SERVICEsm MASTERCASTtm

OCEAN MONITORING SERVICEsm ORBBUOYtm ORBMAPtm TRUSTED IMAGERY EXPERTStm VESSEL

TRACK1NGtm ELEVATING INSIGHTtm GEOEYE ANALYTICStm EARTHWHEREtm SIGNATURE ANALYSTtm

GEOEYE 3D AIRPORTtm GEOEYE 3D HARBORtm and GEOTRACKERtm

11



PART

Item Business

Overview

GeoEye is leading provider of geospatial information and insight for decision makers and analysts who need

clear understanding of our changing world to protect lives manage risk and optimize resources Each day organizations in

defense and intelligence public safety critical infrastructure energy and online media rely on GeoEyes Earth imagery

geospatial expertise and enabling technology to support important missions around the globe Widely recognized as pioneer

in high-resolution satellite imagery GeoEye has evolved into complete provider of geospatial intelligence solutions

In 2011 we increased total revenues to $356.4 million from $330.3 million in 2010 growth rate of 7.9 percent

Over the same period we increased net income to $56.6 million from $24.6 million growth rate of 129.8
percent and

increased Adjusted EBITDA non-GAAP measure see reconciliation on page 22 to $183.0 million from $176.9 million

growth rate of 3.5 percent

We own and operate two Earth-imaging satellites GeoEye-i and IKONOS and three airplanes with advanced high-

resolution imagery collection capabilities GeoEye- is the worlds highest resolution and most accurate commercial Earth-

imaging satellite Our next satellite GeoEye-2 will have even higher resolution It is on track to launch and go into

operations in 2013 We own one of the worlds largest libraries of commercial panchromatic and color digital satellite

imagery it contains more than 614 million
square

kilometers of color Earth imagery

In addition to our high-resolution Earth imagery collection capacities we are global leader in the creation of

enhanced satellite imagery information products and services We operate state-of-the-art high-resolution image processing

and production facilities in St Louis Missouri and Thornton Colorado Our St Louis Missouri facility processes imagery

from numerous commercial and government sensors including our own enhanced satellite imagery to produce an expanded

variety of value-added products We believe we are the only major commercial imagery satellite operator who can produce

imagery from multiple Earth imagery sources in addition to our own enhanced satellite imagery information products and

services

GeoEyes Earth imagery geospatial expertise and enabling technology allow its customers to collect process and

analyze vast amounts of geospatial data to quickly see understand and respond to changes on the ground and anticipate

where events may occur in the future Our Web-based information services platform EyeQ provides on-demand access to

GeoEye imagery making this valuable information accessible to new audiences

GeoEye Analytics builds on our heritage of providing multi-source value-added geospatial services by bringing

advanced geospatial analytics expertise Our analysts leverage proprietary tools and tradecraft to process and exploit multiple

layers of geospatial data to better understand the characteristics of location and anticipate where events may occur Our

teams support many important national security law enforcement and risk management missions

We believe the combination of our Earth imagery geospatial expertise and enabling technology differentiates us

from our competitors This combination enables us to provide elevated insight in the geospatial industry by delivering

solutions that help our customers protect lives manage risk and optimize resources

Our Web site is www.geoeye.com We make available free of charge on or through our Web site our annual reports

on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 0-Q current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or

furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file

such material with or furnish it to the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission or the SEC This reference to our Web site

is for the convenience of shareholders as required by the SEC and shall not be deemed to incorporate any information on the

Web site into this Form 10-K or our other filings with the SEC

Our Web site is also key source of important information about us We routinely post to the About Us/Investor

Relations section of our Web site important information about our business our operating results and our financial condition

and prospects including our earnings releases and supplemental financial information We also have Corporate Governance

page in the Investor Relations section of our Web site that includes among other things copies of our Code of Business

Conduct Ethics and the charters for each standing committee of our Board of Directors which currently are the Audit

Committee the Compensation Committee the Nominating and Governance Committee the Strategy Committee and the Risk

Committee



Products and Services

Our principal sources of revenue are from the sale of Earth imagery directly to end users or value-added resellers

the provision of direct access to our satellites associated ground processing technology upgrades and operations and

maintenance services We also derive significant revenue from value-added production and analytic services where we

combine imagery GeoEye collects with other sources of data from our customers to create sophisticated value-added

geospatial products Additionally we earn revenue from the dissemination and hosting of imagery

Satellite Imagery

We offer wide range
of high-resolution satellite imagery that provides our customers archive data and new

collection services in three key formats

Geo Our Geo product which is the foundation of the imagery product line is map-oriented image

suitable for broad range of customer uses Geo images are suitable for customer visualization and

monitoring applications and are delivered to our customers in data and information format capable of

being processed into other advanced imagery products using standard commercially available software

GeoProfessional Our GeoProfessional products consist of imagery that has been aligned and

geographically corrected by our experienced production personnel to provide the most accurate and precise

imagery currently available from commercial satellite provider Our production personnel can also

combine various satellite and aerial images into single highly detailed and comprehensive image

Available in various levels of accuracy these GeoProfessional products are suitable for feature extraction

change detection base mapping and other similargeo-location applications

GeoStereo Our GeoStereo product uses at least two images of the same location at different angles to

provide our customers with three-dimensional image of given location GeoStereo provides the base

images that are used for three-dimensional feature recognition and extraction These GeoStereo products

support wide range of imagery applications such as digital elevation model creation building height

extraction spatial layers and three-dimensional feature extraction

Aerial Imagery

Our aerial imagery collection services are designed to support specific customer requests for high-resolution and

highly accurate images We offer two main types of aerial imagery collected by our dedicated fleet of three imaging aircraft

digital aerial imaging and light detection and ranging or LiDAR imaging an optical remote sensing technology

using laser pulses to determine distances to an object or surface The use of digital aerial imaging provides our commercial

and government customers with complete digital images which can be easily stored in data management system The

LiDAR technology is valuable tool for measuring and recording elevation data for use in topographic mapping and three-

dimensional terrain and surface modeling useful in the field of engineering We are currently evaluating strategic alternatives

for our aerial imagery services which comprised less than two percent of our total revenues in the year ended December 31

2011

Production Services

Value-added products and services generated by our production service operations are purchased by U.S

government agencies and domestic and international commercial customers including international governments and state

and local governments Production services typically involve the processing and production of specific data and imagery

information products that are built to stringent customer specifications We have developed advanced processing systems that

enable us to process raw data from wide range of both government and commercial sensors imaging satellites and then

merge the source images into very precise information and imagery products to meet the needs of broad range of customers

Our production services range from the generation of precision imagery products for example digital elevation maps to the

extraction of site-specific features for example airports highways and buildings for our customers database development

Our production services which are designed to increase the accuracy and precision of satellite and aerial imagery

include the following production processes

Georectjfication This is computer-processing operation that corrects the pixel locations of digital image

to remove image distortions caused by the non-vertical pointing and movement of the sensor during the

imaging event

Tonal Correction This is the scientific correction of the color variations between various component

images of an image mosaic so that the image or picture reflects coherent color structure



Image Mosaicking This is the process of merging or stitching multiple images together Since images are

taken at different look angles elevations weather times and season etc they do not match each other

tonally or in exact location to the ground Prior to mosaicking images are tonally corrected as much as

possible They are also block adjusted the images are shifted in relation to each other and to ground truth

to improve accuracy The result is group of images that match each other in location and color so they

can be stitched together to create mosaic that is as seamless as possible

Orthorectjlcation This is the process of accurately registering imagery to ground coordinates and

geometrically correcting it for Earth elevation differences at the image location For example
orthorectification is used to make buildings and objects in an image appear to be standing straight instead

of leaning After processing the image can be used for variety of mapping applications including land

use and land-cover classification terrain analysis natural resource mapping backdrops for maps temporal-

change analysis multi-image fusion and more

Our production services include LiDAR elevation data maps topographic maps digital orthophoto imagery remote

sensing services survey and inventory services and Geospatial Information System or GIS consulting and implementation
We also offer geospatial products and services to help develop and manage geospatial data to support customer

documentation needs inventory of resources and engineering and development applications

Information Services

We provide imagery information services which combine our satellite imagery with third-party data to create

sophisticated and customized information for our customers In 2010 we launched our information services business to

provide our customers global on-demand access to imagery and related information over the Internet This Web-based

services platform which we call EyeQ provides the infrastructure for this service and our geospatial information services

business EyeQ commenced operations in April 2010 supporting the U.S governments National Geospatial-Intelligence

Agency or NGA customers

EyeQ delivers imagery and other location-based information through annual subscriptions and user licenses EyeQ
offers Web interface with tools that function as our customers data center EyeQ serves up imagery and other standards-

based content throughout the customers data network and out to their customers and partners

With EyeQ our customers have access to secure timely and accurate location information delivered into their

business environment EyeQ is user friendly and available twenty-four hours day and seven days week EyeQ serves our

goal of simplifying access to and delivery of imagery and location information

On December 15 2010 GeoEye completed the acquisition of 100 percent of the stock of SPADAC Inc or

SPADAC geospatial predictive analytics company which became wholly owned subsidiary named GeoEye Analytics

GeoEye Analytics provides geospatial predictive analytic solutions to over 40 customers in key markets of defense

intelligence and homeland security Our highly trained geospatial and multi-source analysts utilize proprietary software and

algorithms to combine location-based information geographic data human geography historic events and wide range of

other information sources to generate unique location-based analysis that enables customers to gain the insight they need to

support mission critical operations around the world Our teams and technology are used daily in mission areas such as

counter terrorism law enforcement oil and gas exploration fraud detection and risk management Predictive geospatial

analysis enables our customers to analyze where events are likely to occur and provides the insight they need so they can best

manage risk optimize deployment of resources and ensure efficient utilization of key assets

Customers

Our products and services are sold and provided to many U.S government agencies including the national security

community foreign governments and North American and international commercial customers

We sell our imagery by means of image collection orders both satellite and aerial and from our satellite imagery

library which currently comprises over 614 million square kilometers of high-resolution imagery Our imagery products and

services are sold through direct and indirect sales channels resellers direct salespeople strategic partners and through our

customer service and production services personnel Our imagery customers can buy imagery from us through various sales

arrangements including purchasing imagery by the square kilometer or by buying monthly subscription-based access to one

of our satellites and associated ground processing technology and support services Certain international government

customers pay for direct access to our satellites giving them the right to task the satellites and to receive direct downlinks

from the satellite We can deliver imagery products by means of electronic delivery or by the use of physical media such as

CDs DVDs hard drives or electronic distribution The key factors in determining the appropriate delivery method depend on

the customers needs and the file size of the imagery product ordered



U.S Government

Our products and services are provided to various U.S government defense intelligence and law enforcement

agencies and civil agency customers Under the NextView program and the EnhancedView program the NGA acquires

imagery and imagery derived products on behalf of its clients in the U.S defense intelligence and law enforcement agencies

Other U.S government agencies that purchase satellite imagery include the U.S Air Force U.S Army U.S Department of

Interior U.S Geological Survey U.S Fish and Wildlife Service National Park Service National Aeronautics and Space

Administration and the U.S Department of Agriculture For the year ended December 31 2011 we recognized aggregate

revenues of $227.8 million from the U.S government which represented approximately 64 percent of our total revenues

International

Our international customers who represented 26 percent of our total revenues for the year ended December 31

2011 are primarily comprised of foreign governments but also include commercial customers Most foreign countries

currently do not have satellite collection programs as technically sophisticated as the programs in the United States and must

either rely on their own limited aerial imagery collection for their imagery applications or purchase imagery from reliable

commercial satellite providers such as GeoEye Our international customers primarily use imagery for national defense

intelligence programs agricultural planning and monitoring resource monitoring national border monitoring environmental

and infrastructure monitoring and construction planning

North American Commercial and Other

Our North American commercial customers who represented 10 percent of our revenues for the year ended

December 31 2011 purchased both aerial imagery and satellite imagery from us Our North American commercial

customers operate in variety of different market segments including online mapping GIS precision mapping

infrastructure oil and gas environmental monitoring agriculture mining utilities and transportation We sell imagery and

products to our resellers and they in turn add additional value to the products for sale to the end user Examples of our

commercial relationships include arrangements with Esri and our multi-year agreement with Google Inc to provide satellite

imagery for its online consumer and commercial applications

Government Programs

Enhanced View Program

On August 2010 the NGA awarded us contracts under its EnhancedView program This competitively awarded

contract supports
the EnhancedView program by providing products and services that will help meet the increasing

geospatial intelligence needs of the intelligence community and the Department of Defense

The EnhancedView program award provides for new satellite imagery delivery Service Level Agreement or SLA
with the NGA valued at up to $2.8 billion The EnhancedView SLA initially provides for continued monthly payments by the

NGA of up to $12.5 million $150.0 million
per year subject to maximum reduction of 10 percent in the base year and 15

percent in the option years based on performance metrics Under the EnhancedView SLA to the extent that less than $12.5

million is paid by the NGA for any month the shortfall can be applied to future products and services or used to fund an

extension of the contract When GeoEye-2 becomes operational and meets NGA certification requirements which we

currently expect will occur in 2013 EnhancedView SLA payments are expected to increase by an additional $15.3 million

per month $183.6 million
per year also subject to maximum reduction of 15 percent based on performance metrics The

initial term of the EnhancedView SLA was one year with nine one-year renewal options exercisable by the NGA Imagery

deliveries under the EnhancedView SLA began on September 2010 and the imagery is collected by the Companys

existing satellite constellation with GeoEye-2 to collect additional imagery when it becomes operational

As part of the EnhancedView contract the NGA has agreed to contribute 42.1 percent of the cost up to maximum

of $337.0 million of the overall construction and launch costs of the GeoEye-2 satellite and associated ground station

equipment The contribution will be made in two cost-share payments the first payment of approximately $111.0 million

when the GeoEye-2 satellite is ready for integration and testing and the second payment and balance of the cost-share when

the GeoEye-2 satellite becomes operational and meets NGA certification requirements This award component will be

initially recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue over the expected operational life of the satellite At the time

the final cost-share payment is made it is expected that any credits due to the government will be determined and will be

factored into the final payment amount During 2011 the Company successfully completed all critical design review

milestones related to the GeoEye-2 satellite development under the EnhancedView contract



The EnhancedView program award also provides for up to an estimated $702.0 million for value-added products

and services and our EyeQ Web Mapping Services to be delivered over the life of the EnhancedView SLA This award

component includes funding for the design and procurement of additional infrastructure to support government operations

which will be initially recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue over the contractual term of the

EnhancedView contract

If the NGA exercises all of its options and we perform as specified the EnhancedView contracts are worth up to

$3.8 billion over ten years

On October 2011 the Company entered into an amendment to the EnhancedView SLA with the NGA exercising

the first renewal option under the contract to extend the EnhancedView SLA for the period of October 2011 through

August 31 2012 Previously on August 30 2011 the Company signed an amendment to its SLA with the NGA to extend the

performance period of the base
year to October 2011 The amendment also changed the date by which the NGA may

exercise its first of nine one-year renewal options under the EnhancedView SLA from August 31 2011 to October 31 2011
The first of the

one-year renewal options was shortened by the amount that the base
year was extended by this amendment so

that the date by which NGA may exercise the second option year is August 31 2012

This program replaced the NextView program except that GeoEye will continue to fulfill existing NextView value-

added product and services orders until such orders are complete New value-added product and services orders are expected

to be placed under the EnhancedView contract The NextView SLA portion of the NextView program was replaced by the

EnhancedView SLA as of September 2010 We recognized $147.0 million and $49.0 million of imagery and other revenue

under the EnhancedView SLA during the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Satellites

GeoEye-1

GeoEye- has been designed to collect 0.41-meter approximately equivalent to 16.1 inches resolution black-and-

white imagery known in the industry as panchromatic and 1.65-meter approximately equivalent to 65.0 inches resolution

color imagery known in the industry as multispectral of the Earths surface both individually and simultaneously Although

imagery can be collected at 0.41-meter resolution for the U.S government due to current U.S licensing restrictions products

for non-government customers must be re-sampled to no better than 0.5-meter resolution before being made available for sale

to non-U.S government customers For more details on this restriction see Government Regulation United States

below

In addition to 0.5-meter resolution imagery GeoEye- offers geo-location accuracy which is currently better than

five meters This means that customers can map natural and man-made features to within five meters of their true location on

the Earths surface without ground control points

The Company maintains insurance policies for GeoEye-1 with both full
coverage

and total-loss-only coverage in

compliance with our indentures As of December 31 2011 we carried $260.3 million in-orbit insurance for GeoEye-1
comprised in part by $195.8 million of full coverage to be paid if GeoEye- ls capabilities become impaired as measured

against set of specifications which expires on December 2012 We also carry $64.5 million of insurance in the event of

total loss of the satellite which expires December 2012

In 2009 we experienced an irregularity with GeoEye-1 that affected the transmission of imagery to certain ground

stations and subsequently thereto we experienced an unrelated aberration that affected the collection of some color imagery

by GeoEye- We have successfully implemented modifications that we believe significantly reduce or eliminate the business

impacts of these issues Nonetheless any failure of our cameras on any of our satellites or other loss of satellite capacity or

functionality could require different satellite operational modifications that may have material adverse effect on our

imagery collection operations and could materially affect our financial condition and results from operations

IKONOS

GeoEye acquired this satellite through the acquisition of Space Imaging in 2006 IKONOS provides 0.82-meter

resolution black-and-white and 3.2-meter resolution color imagery with geo-location accuracy of approximately 7.8-meters

IKONOS can collect about 200000 square kilometers of imagery per day Like GeoEye-1 IKONOS is designed to downlink

imagery to customer and to accept imaging collection orders directly from customers In addition like GeoEye- IKONOS
has the ability to take simultaneous black-and-white and color imagery allowing us to deliver pan sharpened multispectral

imagery It can also capture stereo images on the same orbital pass The Company maintains $4.3 million of in-orbit

insurance for IKONOS which expires December 2012 to be paid if the satellites capabilities become impaired as

measured against set of specifications The IKONOS satellite was launched in September 1999



Orb View-2

We ceased operating OrbView-2 in early 2011 an event we had been anticipating for some time OrbView-2 was

the first commercial satellite to image the Earths entire surface on daily basis in color OrbView-2 was launched in August

1997 and far outlived its expected operational life it was thirteen years old when we ceased operating it OrbView-2

collected 1.0 kilometer low-resolution color imagery downlinking the imagery to both our primary and backup ground

stations and to various regional receiving stations around the world OrbView-2 revenues for 2011 and 2010 were immaterial

Since discontinuance of OrbView-2 operations we have been using other available sources of low-resolution imagery

GeoEye-2

As noted on August 2010 the NGA awarded us contract under its EnhancedView program One component of

the award is cost-share of up to $337.0 million for the development and launch of GeoEye-2 GeoEye-2 has been designed

to collect 0.34-meter approximately equivalent to 13.4 inches resolution black-and-white imagery and 1.34-meter resolution

color imagery approximately equivalent to 53.5 inches The satellite also incorporates control moment gyros which makes it

more agile for adhoc imagery collection

GeoEye-2 is on track to launch and go into operations in 2013 On January 26 2012 the NGA approved the System

Critical Design Review for the EnhancedView program This review was the final step to verify that GeoEyes space ground

and overall system level designs meet the stringent operational and security requirements of the NGA Completion of these

four critical design reviews also confirms the system will support all mission requirements for the EnhancedView Program

As of December 31 2011 we have incurred total capitalized costs of $578.7 million for EnhancedView primarily consisting

of costs for the development of and construction of GeoEye-2 including $63.0 million of capitalized interest

Production Facilities

GeoEye operates production facilities that provide advanced image processing products engineering analysis and

related services We also operate or contract with other facilities that provide satellite control and communications services

The following table summarizes the primary characteristics of production facilities and satellite control and

communications services

Satellite

Communications and Image Order Imagery Processing

_________________________
Satellite Control Image Receiving Tasking Center

Thornton Colorado

Herndon Virginia

St Louis Missouri

Point Barrow Alaska

Fairbanks Alaska

Mission Kansas

Kiruna Sweden

Tromso Norway

Troll Antarctica

Company History

GeoEye was initially organized as ORBIMAGE Holdings Inc Delaware corporation on April 2005 and is the

successor registrant of ORBIMAGE Inc On January 10 2006 we adopted the brand name GeoEye On September 28 2006

the stockholders of the Company voted to formally change the legal name of the Company from ORBIMAGE Holdings Inc

to GeoEye Inc

Strategic acquisitions have expanded our product and service offerings On January 10 2006 we completed the

acquisition of Space Imaging or SI pursuant to the terms of an asset purchase agreement to acquire the operating assets of

SI The final cash purchase price including acquisition costs was approximately $51.5 million On December 15 2010 we

acquired SPADAC for net purchase price of $44.3 million in cash and stock which includes an adjustment for changes to

the tangible net worth of SPADAC as defined in the merger agreement With the completion of the acquisition SPADAC

became wholly owned subsidiary named GeoEye Analytics Inc GeoEye Analytics provides geospatial predictive analytics

solutions to customers in key markets of defense intelligence and homeland security enabling customers to gain the insight

they need to support mission-critical operations around the world

Additionally in December 2009 we established new foreign subsidiary in Singapore to serve our expanding Asia

customer base GeoEye Asia Pte Ltd



In January 2010 we changed the names of the Companys subsidiaries as follows

Old Name New Name

ORBIMAGE Inc GeoEye Imagery Collection Systems Inc

ORBIMAGE SI Holdco Inc GeoEye Solutions Holdco Inc

ORBIMAGE SI Opco Inc GeoEye Solutions Inc

ORBIMAGE License Corp GeoEye License Corp

Competition

We compete against various public and private companies systems owned by the U.S government and foreign

state-sponsored entities that provide satellite and aerial imagery products and related information services to the commercial

market

Our major competitor for high-resolution satellite imagery is DigitaiGlobe Inc or DigitalGlobe publicly listed

commercial vendor of space imagery Intemational competitors for high-resolution satellite imagery and imagery products

include Astrium an EADS Company the National Remote Sensing Centre Department of Space government of India

RADARSAT International Canada and ImageSat International N.y Israel

Employees

As of December 31 2011 we had 743 employees Generally our employees are retained on an at-will basis We
have entered into employment agreements with certain of our key employees Certain of our employees have non-

competition agreements that prohibit them from competing with us for various periods following termination of their

employment

Government Regulation

The satellite remote imaging industry is highly regulated industry both domestically and internationally In the

United States the operation of remote-imaging satellites generally requires licenses from the Department of Commerce or

DoC and from the Federal Communications Commission or FCC Furthermore remote-sensing satellite and ground-station-

control technologies are subject to U.S export control licensing and regulation under the International Traffic in Arms

Regulations or ITAR administered by the Department of State and the Export Administration Regulations or EAR
administered by the DoC In addition we are party to certain classified U.S government contracts the performance of which

is subject to U.S facility and personnel clearance laws and regulations As is the case with any U.S business we are subject

to U.S government Foreign Corrupt Practices Act restrictions regarding conducting business with foreign government

officials and U.S Treasury Department restrictions prohibiting conducting business with certain embargoed countries or with

entities or persons on the Specifically Designated Nationals list maintained by the U.S Treasury Department Finally to

provide satellite access services and imagery products internationally our satellites may require International

Telecommunication Union or ITU notification and registration and licenses from the governments of foreign countries

where our services and products will be distributed

United Stales

Department of Commerce Regulation

The DoC through the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration or NOAA is responsible for granting

commercial imaging satellite operating licenses and for coordinating satellite-imaging applications among several

governmental agencies to ensure that any license addresses all U.S national security and foreign policy concerns and

complies with all international obligations of the United States We are required to obtain DoC license to operate each of

our remote sensing satellite systems and provide imagery services to our customers

We currently have DoC licenses for all of our existing satellite systems We also hold DoC license that we intend

to use for the GeoEye-2 satellite system that is being developed We intend to modify this DoC license subject to DoC

approval to reflect the final technical specifications for the GeoEye-2 satellite under the NGAs EnhancedView program

The DoC license for GeoEye-2 is constellation license and authorizes us to operate an additional satellite subject to DoC

approval The DoC licenses for our satellites are valid through the operational lifetime of each satellite We
expect to satisfy

the terms of each of the DoC licenses for our satellites and to maintain the regulatory licenses and approvals necessary for

their ongoing operations



Our DoC licenses generally include the following key operating conditions

We are required to maintain positive operational control of our satellite systems from location within the

United States at all times

We are restricted from disseminating to anyone other than the U.S government panchromatic imagery with

resolution better than 0.5-meters or multispectral imagery with resolution better than 2.0-meters within

24 hours of collection

The U.S government reserves the right to exercise shutter control the interruption of service by

limiting imagery collection and/or distribution as necessary to meet significant U.S government national

security or foreign policy interests or international obligations Although the U.S government has never

exercised shutter control with respect to our satellite systems the exercise of this authority would require

us to make imagery data available exclusively to the U.S government by means of approved re-keyable

encryption on the downlink We cannot anticipate whether or under what circumstances the U.S

government would exercise its shutter control authority nor can we reasonably determine what costs and

terms would be negotiated between us and the U.S government in such an event

We are required to obtain DoC approval before implementing significant or substantial agreements with

foreign nations entities or consortiums foreign persons to protect the national security foreign policy

interests and international obligations of the U.S government Transfers of significant or substantial

agreements also require DoC approval Examples of significant or substantial agreements
include

customer agreements for high-resolution imagery collection and distribution operating agreements and

agreements relating to equity investments in the Company of 20 percent or more of the total outstanding

shares or that entitle foreign person to position on our Board of Directors Foreign persons entering into

significant or substantial agreements with us are required to comply with our DoC license imagery

collection and distribution restrictions and are subject to the U.S governments exercise of shutter

control which could adversely affect our ability to collect imagery products for distribution to our foreign

customers and

We are restricted from disseminating imagery of the state of Israel with resolution better than 2.0 meters

Federal Communications Commission Regulation

The FCC is responsible for licensing commercial satellite and ground systems and the radio frequencies used by

commercial satellite systems In general the FCC grants licenses to commercial satellite systems that conform to the

technical legal and financial requirements for these systems set forth in FCC regulations The FCC also regulates the

ownership and control of its licensees and must consent to certain changes in such ownership or control

Below is table summarizing the FCC license grant and expiration dates for our current commercially operational

satellites and related ground systems

GeoEye-1 IKONOS

FCC Satellite License Grant Date 2004 1999

Commercially Operational
Yes Yes

FCC Satellite License Expiration Date 2018 2014

Grant Date of Associated FCC Ground Station

Licenses 2004 1999

Expiration Date ofAssociated FCC April 15 2024 renewable for 15 October 2022 and October 17

Ground Station Licenses years subject to FCC approval 2022 renewable for 15 years

subject to FCC approval

In March 2011 we completed the successful de-orbit of the OrbView-3 satellite and surrendered the OrbView-3

FCC and NOAA licenses Additionally we decommissioned the OrbView-2 satellite later in 2011 We recently filed an

application to modify our GeoEye- satellite FCC license to add the GeoEye-2 satellite and associated ground stations and

expect to obtain the FCC licenses and approvals necessary for GeoEye-2 operations before GeoEye-2 launch in 2013

Export Controls and Security Clearance Regulation

We are subject to complex set of export control and security clearance regulations for the products and services we

offer



Among other things we are registrant under ITAR and we hold export licenses and other approvals from the U.S

Department of States Directorate of Defense Trade Control or DDTC for the export of hardware software and technical

data relating to the potential defense-related satellites ground stations image-processing facilities and support services

provided to customers Additional approvals may be required from DDTC and from the DoCs Bureau of Industry and

Security in certain cases For example export licenses may be required if certain foreign persons or entities are involved in

the development or acquisition of our products and services Also the export of GeoEye-supplied ground station or image-

processing facility to foreign person would require DDTC
export approval The suspension or cancellation of our ITAR

registration or DDTC approval to export our products and services could have material adverse effect on our business and

results of operations

In addition we require certain facility and personnel security clearances to perform our classified U.S government-
related business Security clearances are subject to regulations and requirements This includes the National Industrial

Security Program Operating Manual or NISPOM which provides baseline standards for the protection of classified

information released or disclosed to industry in connection with classified U.S government contracts Among other things

the NISPOM restricts non-U.S foreign ownership control or influence or FOCI over U.S citizen performing

classified work for the U.S government such that investments in the Company by non-U.S entities or individuals could

require prior review by the U.S Department of Defense and could result in changes in the terms of our facility or personnel

clearances The suspension or cancellation of our facility clearances or the inability to maintain personnel security clearances

for our personnel to perform classified U.S government contracts could have material adverse effect on our business and

results of operations

Furthermore any change in our ownership involving transfer to foreign persons or entities may increase U.S

government scrutiny and lead to more onerous requirements in connection with both export controls and security clearances

transfer to foreign ownership could also trigger other requirements including filings with and review by the Committee on

Foreign Investment in the United States pursuant to the Exon-Florio Provision and approval by NOAA under our DoC
licenses Depending on the country of origin and identity of foreign owners other restrictions and requirements could arise

Future Developments

U.S regulators may subject us in the future to new laws policies regulations or changes in the interpretation or

application of existing laws policies and regulations that modify the present U.S regulatory environment In addition U.S

regulators could decide to impose limitations on U.S companies that are currently applicable only to other countries or other

regulatory limitations that affect satellite remote imaging operations Any limitations of this kind could adversely affect our

business or our results of operations

International

All satellite systems providing services in the international markets must comply with the following general

international regulations and the specific laws of the countries in which satellite imagery is downlinked or satellite imagery

products are distributed

International Telecommunication Union or ITU Regulations ITU regulations for satellite system define

the technical operating parameters including range of technical parameters that determine the potential

interference to and from other services and users of the spectrum The FCC on our behalf has completed the

ITU advance publication and notification processes for our IKONOS and GeoEye-l satellite systems After

completion of the ITU notification process ongoing coordination with other satellite systems could occur from

time to time

Foreign Downlink License The regulations of some foreign countries require satellite operators to secure

appropriate licenses and operational authority to use the required spectrum in each country Within foreign

countries our foreign customers are responsible for securing appropriate licenses and operational authority to

use the required spectrum for downlinking our high-resolution satellite imagery with assistance from us as

required

Foreign Imagery Acquisition or Distribution Regulations The regulations or policies of foreign countries

may restrict the acquisition or distribution of satellite imagery products and services For example in the

Republic of India we obtained permission from the government to promote satellite imagery product sales to

customers in India provided the actual product deliveries are made through government-appointed reseller



While we believe we will be able to obtain all U.S ITU and foreign government licenses authorizations and

registrations necessary to provide services internationally we cannot assure you that we will be successful in doing so The

failure to obtain some or all necessary licenses approvals or registrations could have material adverse effect on our

business or results of operations

Item 1A Risk Factors

The risks described below among others could cause our actual operating results to dffer materially from those

indicated or suggested by forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or presented elsewhere by

management from time to time

We depend heavily on U.S government contracts Termination of these contracts would materially reduce our

revenue and have material adverse effect on our business

Revenues from U.S government contracts accounted for 64 percent of our total revenues for the year ended

December 31 2011 Our contracts with U.S government agencies are subject to risks of termination with or without cause

or reduction in scope
due to changes in U.S government policies priorities or funding level commitments to various

government agencies Our primary contract with the U.S government through the NGA is the EnhancedView SLA which

was awarded and authorized on August 2010 Any inability on our part to meet the performance requirements of the

EnhancedView SLA could result in breach of our contract with the NGA The EnhancedView SLA is structured as one-

year agreement with nine one-year
renewal options exercisable at the NGA option In October 2011 the NGA exercised

its first renewal option under the contract This contract amendment extended the EnhancedView SLA for an 11-month

period beginning October 2011 and ending August 31 2012 Eight additional one-year renewal options remain under the

EnhancedView SLA breach of our contract with the NGA resulting in its termination or decision by the NGA not to

exercise its remaining renewal options under the EnhancedView SLA or any other U.S government contract would have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

As part of the EnhancedView award we have entered into cost-share agreement with the NGA that provides for

approximately $337.0 million of funding for the development and launch of GeoEye-2 this amount represents approximately

42 percent of our expected GeoEye-2 development and launch expense If the cost-share agreement is terminated or funding

is significantly reduced it will be difficult for us to obtain similar level of financing on comparable or acceptable terms if

at all If such termination is accompanied by termination or non-renewal of the EnhancedView SLA we will experience

significant difficulty in obtaining financing for the construction and development of future satellites which would have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

substantial portion of our revenues are generated from contracts with U.S government agencies particularly the

NGA that are subject to annual renewal and Congressional appropriations failure or delay by Congress to make

appropriations to the NGA or other U.S government agencies could materially reduce our revenue and have

material adverse effrct on our business

Although our NGA contracts generally involve fixed annual minimum commitments such commitments are subject

to annual Congressional appropriations and as result the NGA may not continue to fund these contracts at current or

anticipated levels If the NGA terminates significantly reduces in scope or suspends any of its contracts with us or changes

its policies priorities or funding levels these actions would have material and adverse effect on our business financial

condition and results of operations We recognized $147.0 million of revenue under the EnhancedView SLA for the year

ended December 31 2011 which accounted for approximately 41 percent of our revenue during the year ended December

31 2011

Funding of U.S government contracts are subject to congressional budget authorization and appropriation

processes
We cannot predict the extent to which total funding andlor funding for our contracts will be included increased or

reduced as part of the 2012 budget and subsequent budgets ultimately approved by Congress or will be included in separate

supplemental appropriations The impact severity and duration of the current U.S economic situation economic policies

adopted or to be adopted by the U.S government and pressures on the federal budget could also adversely affect the total

funding andlor funding for our contracts In the event that appropriations for any of our contracts become unavailable or are

reduced or delayed one or more of our contracts may be terminated or adjusted by the U.S government which could have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations
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When the U.S government does not complete its budget process before the end of its fiscal year government

operations are typically funded pursuant to continuing resolution that authorizes agencies of the U.S government to

continue to operate but does not authorize new spending initiatives When the U.S government operates under continuing

resolution government agencies may delay or cancel funding we expect to receive on work we are already performing

Additionally when operating under continuing resolution U.S government agencies may delay or cancel new initiatives

and programs which could materially adversely affect our business financial condition and results from operations

In addition when the U.S government approaches its existing statutory limit on the amount of permissible federal

debt that may be incurred this limit must be raised in order for the U.S government to continue to pay its obligations on

timely basis If the debt ceiling is not raised it is unclear how the U.S government would prioritize its payments and where

our payments would fall in that priority list significant portion of our work is performed under U.S government contracts

that provide generally that we will continue to perform on the contract even if the U.S government is unable to make timely

payments Failure to continue performance under the contract may place us at risk of termination for default Such conditions

are unprecedented in the history of U.S government fiscal policy administration and there is no assurance that should the

U.S government fail to pass legislation in time to avoid reaching the debt ceiling such legislation would be forthcoming in

the near term Should conditions occur such that the U.S government or others are unable to pay us timely for work

performed we would need to finance that work from our available cash resources credit facilities and access to the capital

markets if available It is unclear how long the U.S governments payment capacity might be constrained and therefore

how long we may be required to finance however it is likely that there are practical limitations on how long we could

finance our operations under these circumstances An extended delay in the timely payments by the U.S government would

likely result in material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Changes in U.S government policy regarding the use of commercial imagery products and service providers or

material delay or cancellation of the U.S government Enhanced View program may have material adverse effect on

our revenue and our ability to fund operations and achieve our growth objectives

Current U.S government policy encourages the use of commercial imagery products and services to support U.S
national security objectives We are considered by the U.S government to be commercial imagery products and services

provider U.S government policy is subject to change and any change in policy away from supporting the use of commercial

imagery products and service providers to meet U.S government imagery needs could materially adversely affect our

business financial condition and results of operations

Our information systems and security systems and networks may be subject to intrusion resulting in possible

interruption delay or suspension of our ability to provide our products and services which could result in loss of
current andfuture business

breach or breaches of our information security or network systems could materially adversely affect our business

Our business involves the transmission and storage of large quantities of electronic data including the imagery comprising

our global imagery library In addition our business is becoming increasingly Web-based allowing our customers to access

and take delivery of imagery from our digital imagery library over the Internet From time to time we have experienced

computer viruses and other forms of third-party attacks on our systems that to date have not had material adverse effect on

our business

Despite the implementation and continued upgrading of security measures our network infrastructure may be

vulnerable to computer viruses unauthorized third-party access or other problems caused by third parties which could lead

to interruptions delays or suspension of our operations loss of imagery from our global imagery library and the loss or

compromise of technical information or customer information Inappropriate use of the Internet by third parties including

attempts to gain unauthorized access to information or systemscommonly known as cracking or hackingcould also

potentially jeopardize the overall security of our systems and could deter certain customers from doing business with us If

breach involves information subject to breach disclosure laws such as certain personally identifiable information we may
be required to publicly disclose the breach which may deter customers from dealing with us and/or expose us to material

notification expenses In addition security breach that involved classified or other sensitive government information or

certain controlled technical information could subject us to civil or criminal penalties and could result in loss of our

government contracts loss of access to classified information loss of export privileges or debarment as government

contractor
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Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or to otherwise infect or sabotage information security

and network systems change frequently and often are not recognized until launched against target we may be unable to

anticipate these new techniques or to implement adequate preventive measures We may also need to expend significant

people and financial resources to protect against security breaches or remedy any breaches that might occur The risk that

these types of events could seriously harm our business is likely to increase as we expand the number of Web-based products

and services we offer and increase the number of countries within which we do business

We operate in highly competitive and specialized industiy The size and resources of some of our competitors may

allow them to compete more effrctively than we can which could result in loss of our market share

Our products and services compete with other satellite and aircraft-based imagery sources and related imagery

products and services offered by wide range and scale of commercial and government providers Some competitors may

have greater financial personnel and other operating resources than us

Our major U.S competitor for high-resolution satellite imagery is DigitaiGlobe DigitaiGlobe currently operates

three high-resolution satellites able to collect sub meter resolution imagery Quickbird launched in 2001 WorldView-

launched in September 2007 and WorldView-2 launched in October 2009 DigitalGlobes three satellite constellation offers

more collection capacity than GeoEyes two satellite constellation of GeoEye-1 and IKONOS While we believe GeoEye-1

offers the highest-resolution and positional accuracy of any commercial imagery satellite in the world some customers may

value collection capacity over image quality In 2011 Astrium successfully launched their Pleiades satellite which collects

sub meter imagery DigitaiGlobe also announced intentions to expand their distribution option for international customers

known as the Direct Access Program The emergence of Astrium as commercial imagery vendor that offers radar medium

resolution and high resolution imaging capabilities and DigitalGlobes increased investment in international growth could

lead to increased pricing competition and put our market share at risk

If competitors develop and launch satellites with comparable or more advanced technologies than ours or offer

services at lower prices than ours then our business financial position and results of operations could be adversely affected

U.S and foreign government agencies may build and operate their own systems which could affect the current and

potential market share of our products and services and could lead to pricing pressure

The U.S government currently relies and is likely to continue to rely on government-owned and operated systems

for classified satellite-based high-resolution imagery The U.S government could reduce its purchases from commercial

satellite imagery providers or decrease the number of companies to which it contracts with no corresponding increase in the

total amount spent

The U.S government and foreign governments also develop construct launch and operate their own imagery

satellites with comparable or higher resolution and accuracy which could reduce their need to rely on commercial suppliers

In addition such governments could sell Earth imagery from their satellites in the commercial market and thereby compete

on price and technological capabilities with the sales of our imagery products and services These governments could also

subsidize the development launch and operation of imagery satellites by our current or future competitors and subsidize the

pricing of imagery from their satellites which could lead to additional pricing pressure Pricing pressure could lead to

potential market share losses if we choose not to lower our prices to retain our existing customer base Any reduction in

purchases of our products and services by the U.S government could have material adverse effect on our business

operations and financial condition

The success of our products and services will depend on market acceptance and you should not rely on historic

growth rates as an indicator offuture growth

Our success depends on existing markets accepting our imagery products and information services and our ability to

develop new business markets and new services Our business plan is based on the assumption that we will generate

significant future revenues from sales of high-resolution imagery produced by our satellite constellation and from sales of our

information services to current and new customers in our existing and new markets The commercial availability of high

resolution satellite imagery is still fairly new market Consequently it is difficult to predict accurately the ultimate size of

the market and the market acceptance of our products and services Our strategy is to target certain existing and new markets

for our satellite imagery and relies on number of assumptions The actual market for our products and services could vary

from the potential end markets that we have identified causing us to develop smaller end markets and potentially miss other

market opportunities
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We cannot accurately predict whether our products and services will achieve significant market acceptance or

whether there will be market for our products and services on terms we find acceptable Market acceptance of our

commercial high-resolution Earth imagery products and new information services depends on number of factors including

the quality scope timeliness sophistication and price of services and the availability of substitute products and services

Lack of significant market acceptance of our offerings or other products and services that utilize our products and services

delays in acceptance failure of certain markets to develop or our need to make significant investments to achieve acceptance

by the market would negatively affect our business operations financial condition and financial results

We may not continue to grow in line with our historical growth rates If we are unable to achieve sustainable

growth we may be unable to execute our business strategy expand our business or fund our liquidity needs As result our

prospects financial condition and business operations could be materially and adversely affected

Interruption or failure of our infrastructure and image downloading systems could impair our ability to effectively

perform our daily operations protect and maintain the Earth imagery content stored in our image archives and

provide our products and services which could damage our reputation and harm our results of operations

The availability of our products and services depends on the continuing operation of our infrastructure information

technology and communications systems including our satellite and ground network systems Any system downtime

damage to or failure of our systems could result in interruptions in our service which could reduce our revenue and profits

Our systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from floods fires power loss telecommunications failures computer
viruses computer denial-of-service attacks or other attempts to harm our systems Our data centers and ground stations can

be powered by backup generators However if our primary source of power and the backup generators also fail our daily

operations and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected

In addition our ground stations and collection systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from human error

intentional bad acts earthquakes hurricanes floods fires war terrorist attacks power losses hardware failures systems

failures telecommunications failures and similar events Our satellite imagery is encrypted downloaded directly to our

ground stations and then stored in our image archives for sale to our customers As result our operations are dependent

upon our ability to maintain and protect our Earth imagery content and our image archives and to provide our images to our

customers including our foreign distribution network value-added resellers and EyeQ customers The impairment of our

ability to perform any of these functions could result in lengthy interruptions in our services and/or damage our reputation

which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition liquidity and results of operations

We rely on resellers and foreign distribution network to market and sell our products and services in certain

markets and to certain customers If these distributors and resellers fail to market our products and services

successfully our business financial condition and results of operations will be materially adversely affected

We rely principally on foreign regional resellers to market and sell our imagery from the GeoEye- and IKONOS
satellites in various international markets We are currently expanding our efforts to further develop our current and future

operations in international markets Our foreign regional resellers may not have the skill or experience to further develop

international regional commercial markets for our products and services If we fail to enter into additional foreign regional

distribution agreements or if our foreign regional resellers fail to market and sell our imagery products and services

successfully abroad these marketing failures could negatively affect our business operations and financial condition

We rely on domestic and foreign value-added resellers to develop market and sell our products and services to

address certain target domestic and foreign markets including certain industries and geographical markets If our value-added

resellers fail to develop market and sell our products and services successfully this failure could negatively affect our

business financial condition and results of operations

Our business is capital intensive and we may not be able to raise adequate capital to finance our business strategies

including funding any future satellite or we may be able to do so only on terms that significantly restrict our ability to

operate our business

The implementation of our business strategies such as expanding our satellite constellation and our value-added

products and services offerings requires substantial outlay of capital As we pursue our business strategies and seek to

respond to opportunities and trends in our industry our actual capital expenditures may differ from our expected capital

expenditures and there can be no assurance that we will be able to satisfy our capital requirements in the future We currently

expect that our ongoing liquidity requirements for sustaining our operations will be satisfied by cash on hand cash generated

from our existing and future operations and proceeds from the U.S government cost-share However we cannot provide

assurances that our businesses will generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future or that future borrowings will

be available in amounts sufficient to enable us to execute our business strategies
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Lending institutions have suffered and may continue to suffer losses due to their lending policies and their other

financial relationships especially because of the continued challenges and uncertainties in the U.S and global economies As

result changes in the capital markets may impact our ability to obtain new financing or refinance our existing debt on

reasonable terms and in adequate amounts if at all If we determine we need to obtain additional funds through external

financing and are unable to do so we may be prevented from fully implementing our business strategies We can provide no

assurance that we will be able to raise sufficient capital to continue funding our satellite constellation and expand our other

products and services

The continuing economic challenges and uncertainty may affect our business operations financial condition and

financial results in ways that we currently cannot predict

The continuing economic challenges in the financial markets national debt concerns and uncertainty regarding the

global economy may have an impact on our business our business operations financial condition and financial results As

the cost of capital has increased substantially and the availability of funds from the capital markets has diminished

significantly our ability to access the capital markets may be restricted or be available only on terms we do not consider

favorable Limited access to the capital markets could adversely affect our ability to take advantage of business opportunities

or react to changing economic and business conditions and could adversely affect our strategy

The current economic situation could affect our customers causing them to fail to meet obligations to us which

could have material adverse effect on our revenue results of operations and cash flows continued economic downturn

coupled with the uncertainty and volatility of the global financial crisis may have further adverse effect on our business and

our consolidated financial condition results of operations and cash flows that we currently cannot predict or anticipate The

uncertainty about future economic conditions also makes it more challenging for us to forecast our operation results make

business decisions and identify and prioritize the risks that may affect our business our business operations financial

condition and financial results

Our success depends upon our ability to recruit and motivate key personnel

Our success depends on attracting retaining and motivating highly skilled engineering and information technology

professionals number of our employees are highly skilled engineers and other information technology professionals In

addition our success depends to significant extent upon the abilities and efforts of the members of our senior executive

management team Competition for highly skilled individuals is intense and if we fail to continue to attract retain and

motivate such professionals our ability to compete in our industry could be adversely affected

Our effective income tax rate may vary

Various internal and external factors may have favorable or unfavorable effects on our future effective income tax

rate These factors include but are not limited to changes in tax laws regulations and or rates the results of any tax

examinations changing interpretations of existing tax laws or regulations changes in estimates of prior years items

acquisitions changes in our corporate structure and changes in overall levels of income before taxes All of these factors

may result in periodic revisions to our effective income tax rate

We may pursue acquisitions investments strategic alliances and joint ventures which could affect our results of

operations

We may engage in various transactions including purchases or sales of assets acquisitions of businesses or enter

into investments or contractual arrangements such as strategic alliances or joint ventures These transactions may be intended

to result in the realization of cost savings the generation of cash the generation of income or the reduction of risk We cannot

assure you that we will be able to identif suitable acquisition investment alliance or joint venture opportunities or that we

will be able to consummate any such transactions or relationships on terms and conditions acceptable to us or that such

transactions or relationships will be successful

In addition upon consummation of an acquisition investment strategic alliance or joint venture we may face

challenges with integration efforts including the combination and development of product and service offerings sales and

marketing approaches and establishment of combined operations There can be no assurance that an acquired business will

perform as expected that we will not incur unforeseen obligations or liabilities that the business will generate sufficient cash

flow to support the indebtedness if incurred to acquire them or the expenditures needed to develop them or that the rate of

return from such businesses will justify the decision to invest the capital
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Any future acquisitions investments strategic alliances or joint ventures may require additional debt or equity

financing which in the case of debt financing would increase our leverage and potentially affect our creditworthiness Any
deterioration in our creditworthiness or our future credit ratings associated with an acquisition could adversely affect our

ability to borrow by resulting in more restrictive borrowing terms

Satellites have limited useful lives and are expensive to replace

Satellites have limited useful lives We determine satellites useful life or its expected operational life using

complex calculation involving the probabilities of failure of the satellites components from design or manufacturing defects

environmental stresses estimated remaining fuel or other causes

number of factors can affect the expected operational lives of our satellites including the quality of construction

the supply of fuel the expected gradual environmental degradation of solar panels the durability of various satellite

components and the orbits in which the satellites are placed Certain advanced components such as its cameras are integral

to satellites design functionality and expected operational life The failure of satellite components can cause damage to or

loss of the use of satellite before the end of its expected operational life Electromagnetic storms or collisions with other

objects could damage our satellites which could in turn impair their design functionality and expected operational life Such

objects could include debris from exploded satellites and spent rocket stages dead satellites and meteoroids We cannot

assure you that each satellite will remain in operation for its expected operational life We expect the performance of any
satellite to decline gradually near the end of its expected operational life

Our GeoEye- satellite was launched in September 2008 and has an expected operational life of nine years

IKONOS another of our satellites launched in September 1999 was fully depreciated in June 2008 An updated study on

IKONOS was completed in 2011 and the results indicate that there are no impending sources of loss of mission through the

end of 2012 However there can be no assurance that IKONOS will continue to operate adequately to remain commercially

viable

Replacing satellite is expensive We are currently building GeoEye-2 which we expect to be operational in 2013
We expect to use $111.0 million the first installment of the federal government cost-share funds current cash balances and

funds generated from operations to develop and launch GeoEye-2 If our cost-share agreement with the NGA is terminated by

the NGA or if Congress fails to make appropriations to fund payments by the NGA under this cost-share agreement we will

have to seek additional financing from outside sources which we may be unable to obtain on terms we find acceptable If we
do not generate sufficient funds from operations and we cannot obtain financing from outside sources on favorable terms we
will not be able to deploy new satellite to replace GeoEye- at the end of its expected operational life We cannot assure

investors that we will be able to generate sufficient funds from operations or be able to raise additional capital on acceptable

terms or on timely basis if at all to develop or deploy follow-on high-resolution satellites

We cannot assure you that our satellites will operate as designed We may experience in-orbit satellite failures or

degradations in performance that could impair the commercial performance of our satellites which could lead to lost

revenue an increase in our operating expenses lower operating income or lost backlog

Our satellites employ advanced technologies and sensors that are subject to severe environmental stresses in space

that could affect the satellites performance Hardware component problems in
space could lead to degradation in

performance or loss of functionality of the satellite with attendant costs and revenue losses In addition human operators

may execute improper implementation commands that can negatively impact satellites performance Unanticipated

catastrophic events such as meteor showers or collisions with space debris could reduce the performance of or destroy any
of our satellites Even if satellite is operated properly minor technical flaws in the satellites sensors could significantly

degrade their performance which could materially affect our ability to collect imagery and market our products successfully

If we suffer partial or total loss of deployed satellite we would need significant amount of time and would

incur substantial expense to repair or replace that satellite We may experience other problems with our satellites that may
reduce their performance During any period in which satellite is not fully operational we may lose most or all of the

revenue that otherwise would have been derived from that satellite In addition we may not have on hand or be able to

obtain in timely manner the necessary funds to cover the cost of any necessary satellite repair or replacement Our inability

to repair or replace defective satellite or correct any other technical problem in timely manner could result in

significant loss of revenue Our business model depends on our ability to sell imagery from our high-resolution satellites We
do not presently have plans to construct and launch replacement satellite for our high-resolution IKONOS satellite if it fails
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In 2009 we experienced an irregularity with GeoEye- that affected the transmission of imagery to certain ground

stations and subsequently thereto we experienced an unrelated aberration that affected the collection of some color imagery

by GeoEye- We have successfully implemented modifications that we believe significantly reduce or eliminate the business

impacts of these issues Nonetheless any failure of our cameras on any of our satellites or other loss of satellite capacity or

functionality could require different satellite operational modifications that may have material adverse effect on our

imagery collection operations and could materially affect our financial condition liquidity and results from operations

New or proposed satellites are subject to construction and launch delays the occurrence of which can materially and

adversely affect our operations

We have in the past experienced delays in satellite construction and launch which have adversely affected our

operations Such interruptions can result from delays in the construction of satellites and the procurement of requisite

components and launch vehicles limited availability of appropriate launch windows possible delays in obtaining regulatory

approvals and launch failures Failure to meet satellites construction schedule resulting in significant delay in the future

delivery of satellite could also adversely affect our marketing strategy for the satellite Even after satellite has been

manufactured and is ready for launch an appropriate launch date may not be available for several months Further any

significant delay in the commencement of service of any of our satellites would allow customers who pre-purchased or

agreed to utilize capacity on the satellite to terminate their contracts which could affect our plans to replace an in-orbit

satellite prior to the end of its service life

Although we carry insurance on our satellites there can be no assurance that insurance proceeds would be available

to us in the event of operational degradation of any our satellites or that proceeds that might be available will

adequately cover our losses

We procure
insurance covering risks associated with our satellite operations through the commercial insurance

markets The cost and amount of coverage
available to us and the types of loss coverage we are able to obtain at reasonable

costs are affected by factors beyond our control These include recent loss experience in insurance markets risk assessments

by insurance carriers and their advisors the carriers cost of capital general economic conditions and failures of other

satellites using components similar to ours or using similar launch vehicles Insurance premiums for satellite risk of loss

coverage
have historically been quite volatile as have the terms of coverage and exclusions for coverage and there can be no

assurance that future premiums we may be required to pay to obtain or maintain our insurance will not exceed our ability to

pay those premiums Higher premiums on insurance policies will increase our costs Should the future terms of launch and

in-orbit insurance policies become less favorable than those currently available this may result in limits on amounts of

coverage that we can obtain or may prevent us from obtaining insurance at all

Our insurance policies contain various exclusions from coverage based upon commercial realities and the types of

coverage available in the market For example the anomalies we have experienced in the operation of GeoEye-1 are

excluded from our present policies and any costs we have experienced to mitigate such anomalies are not covered by

insurance If we experience other operational anomalies associated with our satellites that could degrade their performance or

our ability to collect the amount and/or quality of imagery that we anticipate we may not have access to proceeds to cover

our added costs or loss of revenue

Our 2015 Notes and 2016 Notes require us to obtain launch and in-orbit insurance for our satellites which is costly

and may be or impossible to obtain loss of high-resolution satellite such as GeoEye-1 will require us to

offer to repurchase our 2015 Notes and 2016 Notes and we may lack sufficient insurance to cover that cost

The terms of the 2015 Notes and 2016 Notes or Indentures require us to obtain launch and in-orbit insurance for

any future satellites we construct and launch and require us to maintain specified levels of in-orbit operation insurance for

GeoEye- to the extent that such coverage can be obtained at premium that is not disproportionately high With respect to

GeoEye- we currently carry $260.3 million of in-orbit insurance consisting of $195.8 million of in-orbit insurance

expiring December 2012 and $64.5 million of in-orbit insurance in the event of the total loss of the satellite expiring

December 2012 We believe that under current market conditions the premiums for additional coverage would be

disproportionately high This insurance is not sufficient to cover the cost of replacement high-resolution imagery satellite

such as GeoEye- or to provide us with sufficient funds to repurchase all of the 2015 Notes and the 2016 Notes then

outstanding in the event that as result of such loss we are required to make mandatory offer to repurchase the 2015

Notes and the 2016 Notes We will seek to obtain insurance coverage for GeoEye-2 and all future satellites as required under

the 2015 Notes and the 2016 Notes However any failure to obtain required insurance could cause default under the 2015

Notes and the 2016 Notes
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We have substantial amount of indebtedness

Our substantial indebtedness has important consequences For example it

limits our ability to borrow additional funds

limits our ability to pay dividends

limits our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and our industry

increases our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions

limits our ability to make strategic acquisitions

requires us to dedicate substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on indebtedness

reducing the availability of cash flow to fund working capital capital expenditures and other general

corporate activities and

places us at competitive disadvantage compared to competitors that have less debt

Interest costs related to our debt are substantial and as result the demands on our cash resources are significant

Our ability to make payments on our debt and to fund operations and planned capital expenditures will depend on our future

results of operations and ability to generate cash Our future results of operations are to certain extent subject to general

economic financial competitive legislative regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control

The terms of the Indentures will permit us and our subsidiaries to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the

future including secured indebtedness with first-priority liens or pan passu liens which could further exacerbate the risks

described above

Servicing our indebtedness will require signflcant amount of cash Our ability to generate sufficient cash depends

on numerous factors beyond our control and we may be unable to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt

obligations

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness will depend on our ability to generate cash in the

future This to certain extent is subject to general economic political financial competitive legislative regulatory and

other factors that are beyond our control

For the year ended December 31 2011 our interest expense totaled $53.1 million before considering the impact of

capitalized interest We cannot assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations to enable us to

pay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs If our cash flows are insufficient to allow us to make scheduled

payments on our indebtedness we may need to reduce or delay capital expenditures sell assets seek additional capital or

restructure or refinance all or portion of our indebtedness on or before maturity We cannot assure you that we will be able

to refinance any of our indebtedness or that we will be able to refinance on commercially reasonable terms or that these

measures would satisf our scheduled debt service obligations If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow or refinance

our debt on favorable terms it could have material adverse effect on our financial condition the value of our outstanding

debt and our ability to make any required cash payments under our indebtedness

lowering or withdrawal of the credit ratings assigned to our debt securities by rating agencies may increase our

future borrowing costs and reduce our access to capital

Our debt currently has non-investment grade credit rating and any credit rating assigned could be lowered or

withdrawn entirely by rating agency if in that rating agencys judgment future circumstances relating to the basis of the

rating such as adverse changes so warrant Consequently real or anticipated changes in our credit ratings will generally

affect the market value of the Notes Credit ratings are not recommendations to purchase hold or sell the Notes Additionally

credit ratings may not reflect the potential effect of risks relating to the structure or marketing of the Notes Any downgrade

by rating agency could decrease eamings and may result in higher borrowing costs

Any future lowering of our ratings likely would make it more difficult or more expensive for us to obtain additional

debt financing If any credit rating initially assigned to the Notes is subsequently lowered or withdrawn for any reason you

may not be able to resell your Notes without substantial discount
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Failure to obtain or the revocation of regulatory approvals could result in service interruptions and materially

adversely affect our business financial position and results of operations

US Government Approvals Operation of our satellites requires licenses from and is subject to regulation by the

DoC The failure to obtain these licenses or the revocation of one or more licenses for example as the result of our failure to

comply with our licenses or applicable regulations could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business DoC

regulations and license conditions provide that we must obtain prior DoC consent to certain changes in control over or the

holding of certain interests in the Company DoC regulations and license conditions also provide that the U.S government

may interrupt service or otherwise limit our ability to distribute satellite images to certain parties including certain of our

customers to address national security or foreign policy concerns or because of the international obligations of the U.S

government Actual or threatened interruptions or limitations on our service could adversely affect our ability to market our

products In addition the DoC has the right to review and approve our agreements with foreign entities including contracts

with international customers for high-resolution imagery We have received such approvals for the agreements in place with

our existing international customers However such reviews could delay or prohibit us from executing new international

agreements or renewals or extensions of our existing agreements which could materially adversely affect our financial

condition and results of operations See Government Regulation United States Department of Commerce Regulation

We have in the past and may in the future supply certain of our international customers with access to ground

stations that enable these customers to downlink data directly from our satellites Exporting these ground stations and

technical information relating to these stations may require us to obtain export licenses from the DoC or the U.S Department

of State If the DoC or the U.S Department of State does not issue these export licenses in connection with future exports or

if these licenses are significantly delayed or contain restrictions or if the DoC or the U.S Department of State revokes

suspends or denies request for renewal of existing licenses then our business financial condition and results of operations

could be materially adversely affected See Government Regulation United States Export Controls and Security

Clearance Regulation

We require certain facility and personnel security clearances to perform our classified U.S government related

business Security clearances are subject to regulations and requirements including the National Industrial Security Program

Operating Manual or NISPOM which provides baseline standards for the protection of classified information released or

disclosed to industry in connection with classified U.S government contracts Among other things the NISPOM restricts the

ability of non-U.S foreign entities or individuals to hold foreign ownership control or influence or FOCI over U.S

person performing classified work for the U.S government such that investments in the Company by non-U.S entity or

individual could require prior review by the U.S Department of Defense The suspension or cancellation of our facility

security clearances or the inability to maintain personnel security clearances for our personnel to perform classified U.S

government contracts could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations See Government

Regulation United States Export Controls and Security Clearance Regulation

Our operation of satellites and ground stations also requires licenses from and is subject to regulation by the FCC
The FCC regulates the launch and operation of our satellites the use of satellite spectrum and the licensing of our ground

station terminals located within the United States The FCC also regulates the ownership and control of its licensees and

must consent to certain changes in such ownership or control We currently have all required FCC licenses necessary to

operate our business as it is currently conducted and recently filed an application to modify the GeoEye- satellite FCC

license to add the GeoEye-2 satellite and associated ground stations However these licenses have expiration dates which are

expected to occur while the satellites and ground systems are still in use The FCC generally renews licenses in the ordinary

course but there can be no assurance that our licenses will be renewed at their expiration dates for full terms or without

adverse conditions or that our application to modify our GeoEye-l satellite FCC license will be granted Failure to renew or

modify these licenses obtain FCC authorization to launch and operate any new satellites or otherwise maintain our existing

licenses for example as the result of our failure to comply with our licenses or applicable regulations could have material

adverse effect on our ability to generate revenue and conduct our business as currently planned See Government Regulation

United States Federal Communications Commission Regulation

International Registration and Approvals The use of satellite spectrum is subject to the requirements of the ITU

Additionally satellite operators must abide by the specific laws of the countries in which downlink services are provided

from the satellite to ground station terminals within such countries Our customers or distributors are responsible for

obtaining local regulatory approval from the governments in the countries in which they receive imagery downlinked directly

from our satellites to ground stations within such countries If the necessary approvals are not obtained we will not be able to

distribute real-time imagery in those regions and this inability to offer real-time service in foreign country could negatively

affect our business In addition regulatory provisions in countries where we wish to operate may impose unduly burdensome

restrictions on our operations Our business may also be adversely affected if the national authorities where we plan to

operate adopt treaties regulations or legislation unfavorable to foreign companies or limiting the provision of our products

and services
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Our international business exposes us to risks relating to increased regulation and political or economic instability in

foreign markets

For the year ended December 31 2011 approximately 26 percent of our total revenues were derived from

international sales We intend to continue to pursue international contracts and we expect to continue to derive substantial

revenues from international sales of our products and services International operations are subject to certain risks such as

Changes in domestic and foreign governmental regulations and licensing requirements

Deterioration of relations between the United States and particular foreign country

Increases in tariffs and taxes and other trade barriers

Changes in political and economic stability including fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies which may
make payment in U.S dollars as provided for under our existing contracts more expensive for foreign

customers and

Difficulties in obtaining or enforcing judgments in foreign jurisdictions

These risks are beyond our control and could have material adverse effect on our business financial position and

results of operations

Government audits of our contracts could result in decrease in our earnings and/or have negative effect on our

cash position following an audit adjustment

Our government contracts are subject to cost audits which may occur several years after the period to which the

audit relates If an audit identifies significant unallowable costs we could incur material charge to our earnings or reduction

in our cash position

Item 113 Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The properties used in our operations consist principally of satellite ground stations and terminals production
facilities and administrative and executive offices The following table sets forth certain information about the location of

each property used in our business

Location Sq Ft Lease/Own Purpose

Herndon Virginia 81236 Lease Headquarters satellite operations information services

and principal executive offices

Thornton Colorado 42106 Own Satellite operations and production services back-up

for GeoEye-

St Louis Missouri 21060 Lease Production services

Mission Kansas 13521 Lease MJ Harden aerial imagery and production services

Fairbanks Alaska 5041 Lease Ground terminal station and IKONOS backup

command and control

Point Barrow Alaska 620 Lease Ground terminal station

McLean Virginia 35079 Lease GeoEye Analytics operations

Singapore Asia 436 Lease Sales marketing and customer service activities

Item Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business we may be party to various lawsuits legal proceedings and claims arising out of

our business We believe that the outcome of any existing or known threatened proceedings even if determined adversely

should not have material adverse effect on our business financial condition liquidity or results of operations

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Repurchase of Equity

Securities

Our sole class of common equity is our $0.01 par value common stock which is listed on the NASDAQ Global

Market and is listed under the symbol GEOY Effective September 14 2006 our common stock began trading as GEOY
From the period January 13 2004 to September 13 2006 our common stock traded over-the-counter and sales were reported

on the NASDAQ bulletin board under the symbol ORBM Prior to January 13 2004 there was no established trading

market for our common stock

As of December 31 2011 we had approximately 530 holders of record of our common stock All of the shares of

common stock held by brokerage firms banks and other financial institutions as nominees for beneficial owners are

deposited into participant accounts at Depository Trust Company and are therefore considered to be held of record by Cede

Co as one stockholder

Information concerning the stock prices as reported on the NASDAQ composite transaction tape is as follows

2011 2010

High Low High Low

4th Quarter 36.65 18.25 46.06 39.86

3rd Quarter 41.65 27.22 40.48 30.80

2nd Quarter 41.57 33.17 32.98 26.10

1st Quarter 44.55 37.09 29.75 23.61

We have 80000 shares of percent Series Convertible Preferred Stock or the Preferred Stock authorized at

$0.01 par value per share of which 80000 shares were issued and outstanding as of December 31 2011 with liquidation

preference of $1000 per share

We have 50000 shares of Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock authorized at no par value There is no

Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock issued or outstanding as of December 31 2011

Dividends

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock nor do we anticipate paying cash dividends on our

common stock at any time in the foreseeable future We are prohibited with certain exceptions allowed under the indentures

from paying dividends under instruments governing our 2015 and 2016 Notes until the principal amount of all such notes has

been repaid These restrictions are more fully discussed in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Cash Flows below

Cumulative dividends on the Preferred Stock are payable at rate of percent per annum of the $1000 liquidation

preference per share At the Companys option dividends may be declared and paid in cash out of funds legally available

when as and if declared by the Board of Directors of the Company If not paid in cash an amount equal to the cash dividends

due is added to the liquidation preference Dividends payable in cash are recorded in current liabilities All dividends payable

whether in cash or as an addition to the liquidation preference are recorded as reduction to our retained earnings The

Company paid quarterly dividends of $1.0 million during each of the three month periods ended March 31 2011 June 30

2011 September 30 2011 and December 31 2011 As of December 31 2011 we had $1.0 million of unpaid dividends

These dividends were paid on January 32012
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth as of December 31 2011 the number of securities outstanding under our equity

compensation plans the weighted average exercise price of such securities and the number of securities available for grant

under these plans

Securities to Be

Issued Upon
Exercise of Outstanding Weighted-Average

Options and Equity Exercise Price per Securities Available

Plan Category Awards Share for Future Issuance

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders 1852564 24.54 776235

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders N/A

Total 1852564 24.54 776235

Includes stock options time-based nonvested stock time-based director stock units performance-based

restricted stock units and performance-based nonvested stock awards

Includes weighted-average exercise price of outstanding stock options only

Item Selected Financial Data

The table below sets forth the selected historical consolidated financial and operating data for each of the five years

ended December 31 2011 which has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements of GeoEye The

following consolidated financial information should be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial statements and related notes in

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands except per share amounts
Revenues 356407 330345 271102 146659 183023

Incomebeforeprovisionbenefitforincometaxes... 89925 47989 14488 10348 68005

Net income 56612 24637 32061 26615 28470
Net income available to common stockholders 46911 22747 32061 26615 28470

Earnings per common share basic 2.12 1.05 1.71 1.48 1.62

Earnings per common share diluted 2.06 1.02 1.55 1.36 1.44

Adjusted EBITDA 183034 176928 132172 39707 100743

Capital expenditures 314524 233736 79090 127937 60159

Cash cash equivalents and short-term investments 197958 333357 208872 110546 234324
Total assets 1334585 1269085 947207 794605 853090

Long-term debt 511019 508160 380594 247502 246789
Stockholders equity 507287 443243 279955 230404 193209
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is non-GAAP financial measure that represents net income before interest expense net

provision for income taxes depreciation and amortization expenses non-cash stock-based compensation expense
and other

items We present adjusted EBITDA to enhance understanding of our operating performance We use adjusted EBITDA as

one criterion for evaluating our performance relative to that of our peers We believe that adjusted EBITDA is an operating

performance measure and not liquidity measure that provides investors and analysts with measure of operating results

unaffected by differences in capital structures capital investment cycles and ages of related assets among otherwise

comparable companies However adjusted EBITDA is not recognized term of financial performance under GAAP and our

calculation of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to the calculation of similarly titled measures of other companies

The use of adjusted EBITDA as an analytical tool has limitations and it should not be considered in isolation or as

substitute for analysis of our results of operations as reported in accordance with GAAP Some of these limitations are

It does not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for all contractual commitments

It does not reflect our significant interest expense or the cash requirements necessary to service our

indebtedness

It does not reflect cash requirements for the payment of income taxes when due

Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges the assets being depreciated and amortized

will often have to be replaced in the future and adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements

for such replacements and

It does not reflect the impact of earnings or charges resulting from matters we consider not to be indicative

of our ongoing operations but may nonetheless have material impact on our results of operations

Because of these limitations adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as measure of discretionary cash

available to us to invest in the growth of our business or as an alternative to net income or cash flow from operations

determined in accordance with GAAP Management compensates for these limitations by not viewing adjusted EBITDA in

isolation and specifically by using other GAAP measures such as cash flow provided by operating activities and capital

expenditures to measure our liquidity Our calculation of adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to the calculation of

similarly titled measures reported by other companies

reconciliation of net income to adjusted EBITDA is as follows

Net income

Adjustments

Interest expense net

Loss from early extinguishment of debt

Write-off of prepaid financing costs

Provision benefit for income taxes

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash stock based compensation expense

Non-cash loss on inventory and investment

impairments

Non-cash change in fair value of financial

instrument

Gain from investments

Goodwill impairment

Acquisition costs __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Adjusted EBITDA ________ ________ ________ _________

For the Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands

56612 24637 32061 26615 28470

8249 27918 31020
37 27127

17573
57166

2371

33313

71840

10520

2500

6412

23352

65262

6877

24466

3200

11452

16267
11357

3396

3154

14189

39535

16474

2075

1167

183034 176928 132172 39707 100743
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with GeoEye consolidated financial

statements and related notes and the discussions under Application of Critical Accounting Policies also under Item

which describes key estimates and assumptions we make in the preparation of its consolidatedfinancial statements and Item

JA Risk Factors which describes key risks associated with our operations and industry

This management discussion and analysis or MDA is intended to assist in understanding and assessing the trends

and signflcant changes in our results of operations and financial condition We organized our MDA into the following

sections

Executive Summary brief description of our business

Business and Industry Factors discussion of our plans to grow our business and industry trends that may

impact our results

Results of Operations an analysis of our results of operations in our consolidated financial statements

Liquidity and Capital Resources an analysis of cash flows sources and uses of cash commitments and

contingencies and the impact of inflation

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates discussion of key accounting policies requiring critical

judgments and estimates

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk an analysis of the interest rate and foreign

exchange exposure

Executive Summary

GeoEye is leading provider of geospatial information and insight for decision makers and analysts who need

clear understanding of our changing world to protect lives manage risk and optimize resources Each day organizations in

defense and intelligence public safety critical infrastructure energy
and online media rely on our Earth imagery geospatial

expertise and enabling technology to support important missions around the globe Widely recognized as pioneer in high-

resolution satellite imagery we have evolved into complete provider of geospatial intelligence solutions

Business and Industry Factors

Business Strategy

We believe we are well positioned as leading provider of geospatial information and insight due to our broad range

of imagery collection assets world class image processing and production facilities deep geospatial expertise and strong

global distribution network Key elements of our strategy to take advantage of our competitive position and grow our

business include

Expand our satellite constellation With the NGA EnhancedView award we will continue to develop and

grow our constellation and add capacity to serve our customer base and expand our services GeoEye-2 is

on track to launch and go into operations in 2013 As of December 31 2011 we have incurred total

capitalized costs of $578.7 million for EnhancedView primarily consisting of costs for the construction of

GeoEye-2 including $63.0 million of capitalized interest Our EnhancedView award from the NGA
included cost-share of up to $337.0 million to help fund the development of GeoEye-2

Further expand our value-added products and service offerings We believe our industry-leading Earth

imagery resolution and accuracy high-scale image production capabilities and expert personnel establish

us as leader in the field of imagery production and enhancement We have classified facilities and cleared

staff certified to process imagery from multiple Earth imagery providers to meet the needs of our

government customers Our acquisition of SPADAC Inc expanded our expertise tools and tradecraft in

the area of advanced geospatial analysis We believe these and continued investments will enable our

customers to gain new insights that help them better support their missions

Further commercialize our industry-leading high-resolution Earth imagery We plan to develop new

platforms and distribution technologies to make our Earth imagery more accessible to our current and

potential customers For example our EyeQ Web services platform provides access to imagery on

subscription basis rather than selling imagery pixels on square kilometer basis By managing Earth

imagery in the cloud customers can save money and more easily share insights with broader audience
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Expand our existing geographically diverse customer base We will continue to build on our existing

relationships with our customers and our international resellers We have strong global distribution

network that includes regional affiliates that have invested in ground stations and large number of global

resellers These partners offer strong route to market for our Earth imagery and value-added products and

services

Industry Factors

The geospatial industry is affected by many different factors Factors that drive market demand for our products and

services include but are not limited to increased demand for technologies in response to national defense and environmental

observation initiatives commercial demand for satellite mapping technologies global infrastructure project initiatives and

advances in communication technologies Factors that could negatively affect market demand for our products and services

include but are not limited to decreasing U.S and foreign government budgets U.S and foreign governments developing

and launching their own imagery programs the proliferation of competing surveillance technologies such as unmanned aerial

vehicles and increases in U.S export constraints

Positive industry trends include the following

We expect that due to geopolitical uncertainty global terrorist activity changing climate trends and large

natural disasters there will be continued demand from both U.S and international government agencies for

up-to-date and accurate digital imagery and digital mapping databases Defense personnel may be called

upon to deploy to support actions in hostile environments or to respond to natural disasters and combat

mission planners will require the latest geospatial information Our customers in countries around the world

will continue to need to monitor their borders and the other areas of political and economic interest

The frequency of natural disasters such as tsunamis hurricanes and earthquakes has increased

awareness of the utility of imagery information products for humanitarian missions and the need for

geospatial information in risk assessment response and recovery Satellite data is valuable tool in

assessing disaster response and recovery and planning logistical operations

GeoEye is often the first to deliver commercial satellite imagery to the U.S government foreign

governments commercial customers and humanitarian agencies In 2011 GeoEye supplied imagery

for humanitarian support and emergency relief support for the earthquake and tsunami in Japan and the

devastation of the Fukushima nuclear facility the massive floods in Queensland Australia the

catastrophic landslides in Brazil and tornadoes in Tuscaloosa Alabama and Joplin Missouri

Commercial satellite imagery was put to immediate use following the January 2010 earthquake in

Haiti In March 2010 the entire world saw the practical application of commercial satellite imagery for

understanding the extent and scope of the volcanic eruption in Iceland and the effect of its ash cloud on

Western Europe Also in April 2010 GeoEye began supplying the U.S Coast Guard with millions of

kilometers of imagery to understand the scope of the man-made oil spill disaster in the Gulf of Mexico

GeoEye continued to supply the NGA and the U.S Coast Guard with current imagery throughout the

summer so that federal agencies could make better response decisions as the crisis evolved

Commercial demand for satellite imagery and geospatial expertise continues to grow We expect the

commercial market for imagery better than three-meter ground resolution from high-resolution imaging

satellites to grow over the next few years We believe that growth will be fueled in part by the broad

awareness created by the online mapping search engines such as Google EarthTM and Microsoft Virtual

Earth TM Consumers are beginning to utilize location-based technologies for everything from navigation

to social networking The convergence of imagery with GPS and personal navigation devices combined

with inexpensive access to broadband communications networks appears to have generated development

of new commercial applications incorporating Earth imagery

Our technology is well suited for infrastructure project management Both satellite and aerial imagery

along with other location-based enabling technologies can help the U.S other countries and large

commercial enterprises achieve their infrastructure goals more efficiently and cost effectively since every

infrastructure project has reference to physical location on the surface of the globe According to an

industry trade group significant portion of the new stimulus programs proposed by the current U.S

administration will require geospatial data or services particularly in the areas of design and planning for

infrastructure projects wildfire mapping environmental infrastructure projects surveying and charting and

airport improvements
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Rapid advancements in IT infrastructure capabilities such as cloud computing mobile communications and

broadband may have dramatic effects on the industry While digital information including satellite imagery

and products is easily distributed to customers over the Internet there is increasing customer interest in

having others host imagery for them while adding value to it in service-oriented environment As result

we anticipate growth in the increasing use of cloud computing where data and applications reside in the

cloud rather than on company servers or hard drives The NGAs EnhancedView SLA is an example of

how agencies may utilize geospatial technology rather than just buying imagery pixels by the square

kilometer

We believe the heightened focus on the global environment could increase the use of Earth imagery for

global observation to support climate change initiatives or to verify or monitor carbon reduction projects

established through legislation or done voluntarily

Negative industry trends include

Due to the federal budgetary problems arising from the economic recession the U.S government is

considering broad reductions in expenditures including possible reductions to expenditures on commercial

satellite imagery The U.S government drives substantial portion of commercial imaging demand and our

revenues including EnhancedView This program is subject to annual funding appropriations At this time

the U.S governments ongoing budget process is underway and the amounts of any funding reductions to

EnhancedView are unknown In addition challenging economic conditions at the international state and

local level can negatively impact our ability to expand in these areas particularly in commercial markets

The U.S government may build and launch its own classified satellite imaging program and produce

imagery similar to or better than that currently provided by commercial data providers While the current

and last two government administrations in the U.S developed commercial remote sensing policies that are

favorable for the commercial satellite imagery industry the intelligence community may make efforts to

fund U.S government-owned satellite systems that could compete with the commercial satellite imagery

data providers The current economic demands on the U.S government resources and the inherent time it

takes to design and deploy new satellite imagery systems may mitigate any near-term impact should the

government decide to develop competing assets We continue to monitor for any change in the U.S

governments policy toward commercial imagery providers

More countries are increasingly interested in developing and launching their own satellite imagery systems

According to EuroConsult study released in January 2011 it is possible that over 30 high-resolution

satellite imagery systems could be launched and in operation across all regions in the 2013 to 2018

timeframe While none of these imaging systems can currently match the resolution and accuracy of U.S

commercial systems several countries are planning to launch systems with capabilities similar to our

imagery assets The development and launch of such systems does involve significant risk and uncertainty

including technological launch and financing risk We are mindful of this trend as we consider how best to

grow our business

The U.S government is increasingly using other sensors such as unmanned aerial vehicles for more

persistent surveillance While these systems are mainly used for tactical intelligence collection and tactical

and targeted munitions delivery they can provide commanders with visibility over smaller area of interest

on more sustained basis We believe that our imagery and products will remain an important element in

fulfilling the U.S governments broad imagery needs in both tactical and non-mission critical situations

While not new the U.S government continues to place onerous restrictions on the export of remote sensing

satellites and associated ground station components to foreign persons Many commentators believe that

ITAR has in effect hampered U.S competitiveness overseas Such strict government licensing restricts

exchange of technical data and export of commercial remote sensing hardware such as ground stations

thereby encouraging development of foreign manufacturing capability
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Results of Operations

Comparison of the Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Revenues

Operating expenses

Direct costs of revenue

exclusive of

depreciation and

amortization

Depreciation and

amortization

Selling general and

administrative

Goodwill impairment

Total operating

expenses

Income from operations

Interest expense net

Other non-operating

expense

Gain from investments

Loss from early

extinguishment of debt..

Write-off of prepaid

financing costs

Income before provision for

income taxes

Provision for income

taxes

Net income

Preferred stock

dividends

Net income less preferred

stock dividends

Income allocated to

participating securities...

Net income available to

common stockholders

For the Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 ChangeBetween 2011 and2OlO

in thousands except percentages

Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

$356407 100.0% 330345 100.0% 26062 7.9%

89925

33313
56612

4000

52612

5701

46911

0.0 24466
0.0 3200

0.0 37

0.0 6412

25.2 47989

9.3 23352
15.9 24637

1.1 1107

14.8 23530

1.6 783

13.2 22747

18.2

10.1

6.0

100.0

For the Year Ended December 31
2011 2010

in thousands except percentages

Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

256280 1.9% 249698 75.6% 6582

24153 6.8 24153 7.3

75974 21.3 56494 17.1 19480

356407 100.0 330345 100.0 26062

122972 34.5 104010 31.5 18962

71840 20.2 65262 19.8 6578

60921 17.1 57451 17.4 3470

2500 0.7 0.0 2500

258233 72.5 226723 68.6 31510

98174 27.5 103622 31.4 5448
8249 2.3 27918 8.5 19669

7.4 24466

1.0 3200

0.0 37

1.9 6412

14.5 41936

7.1 9961
7.5 31975

0.3 2893

7.1 29082

0.2 4918

6.9 24164

13.9

5.3
70.5

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

87.4

42.7

129.8

261.3

123.6

628.1

106.2

Percentages in this table and throughout our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations

may reflect rounding adjustments The totals shown above may not appear to sum due to rounding

Revenues

Revenues

Imagery

NextView cost-share

Production and other services

Total revenues

Change Between 2011

and 2010

2.6%

34.5

7.9

26



Imagery revenues primarily include imagery sales affiliate access fees and operations and maintenance fees

NextView cost-share revenues are based on the recognition of deferred revenue related to the cost-share amounts from the

NGA Production and other services revenues primarily include revenue from production orders for the NGA and

commercial customers our digital aerial imagery services GeoEye Analytics and EyeQ our Web-based dissemination

services

Imagery revenues increased primarily due to an increased level of deliveries to domestic commercial customers and

international resellers Production and other services revenues increased in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to the

inclusion of GeoEye Analytics partially offset by decline in our value-added production services over last year

Total domestic and international revenues were as follows

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2011

2011 2010 and 2010

in thousands except percentages

Revenues Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Domestic 263828 74.0% 244826 74.1% 19002 7.8%

International 92579 26.0 85519 25.9 7060 8.3

Total revenues 356407 100.0 330345 100.0 26062 7.9

Domestic revenues include those from the SLAs recognition of deferred revenue related to the NextView cost-share

payments from the NGA commercial imagery sales sales of value-added products and services and EyeQ our Web-based

dissemination services International revenues are derived from access fee agreements and ground station operation and

maintenance contracts with our international regional affiliate customers commercial imagery sales and sales of ground

stations

Domestic revenues increased in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to the inclusion of revenues from the sale of

GeoEye Analytics products and services in 2011 and increased deliveries to commercial customers

International revenues increased in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to an increase in imagery deliveries to

international resellers

Operating Expenses

Direct Costs of Revenue

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2011

2011 2010 and 2010

in thousands except percentages

Direct Costs of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Labor and overhead 77102 21.6% 53537 16.2% 23565 44.0%

Subcontractor 25080 7.0 29541 8.9 4461 15.1
Satellite insurance 6171 1.7 6202 1.9 31 0.5
Otherdirectcosts 14619 4.1 14730 4.5 111 0.8

Total direct costs of

revenue 122972 34.5 104010 31.5 18962 18.2

Direct costs of revenue include the costs of operating our satellites and related ground systems labor and ongoing

costs related to our operations maintenance and production contracts and provision of services by GeoEye Analytics

Subcontractor expenses primarily include payments to third parties for support to operate the IKONOS and GeoEye-1

satellites and their related ground systems Other direct costs include third-party costs and fees to support our satellite

program and the costs associated with monitoring our ground station equipment

Labor and overhead costs increased in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to the inclusion of GeoEye Analytics

Subcontractor expenses decreased during 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to lower level of engineering and

consulting costs incurred in 2011
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Depreciation and Amortization

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2011

2011 2010 and 2010

in thousands except percentages

Depreciation and Amortization Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Depreciation 67424 18.9% 62620 19.0% 4804 7.7%

Amortization 4416 1.2 2642 0.8 1774 67.1

Total depreciation and

amortization 71840 20.2 65262 19.8 6578 10.1

During the Companys annual evaluation of intangibles and long-lived assets the implied fair value of certain

identified assets related to our aerial imagery collection services was lower than carrying value This resulted in $1.6

million adjustment $0.7 million is included in depreciation and $0.9 million is included in amortization for the year ended

December 31 2011

The increase in depreciation is primarily due to the deployment of several EyeQ system releases and related

hardware the inclusion of GeoEye Analytics our move to the new Hemdon headquarters in 2011 and the asset impairment

noted above

The increase in amortization expense is primarily associated with the inclusion of GeoEye Analytics intangibles and

the asset impairment noted above partially offset by Space Imaging intangible assets becoming fully amortized early in

2011

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2011

2011 2010 and 2010

Seffing General and in thousands except percentages

Administrative Expenses Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Payroll commissions and

related costs 25593 7.2% 25431 7.7% 162 0.6%

Stock-based compensation 7075 2.0 5276 1.6 1799 34.1

Professional fees 10056 2.8 12528 3.8 2472 19.7

Research and development 2690 0.8 1647 0.5 1043 63.3

Other 15507 4.4 12569 3.8 2938 23.4

Total selling general and

administrative expenses 60921 17.1 57451 17.4 3470 6.0

Selling general and administrative expenses include the costs of the finance administrative and general

management functions and the costs of marketing advertising promotion and other selling expenses including commissions

Other selling general and administrative expenses include facilities computer and telecommunication services travel and

related costs for our sales marketing and back office support activities

Total selling general and administrative expenses increased in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily as result of

increased stock-based compensation expense as well as other selling general and administrative expenses related to

facilities computer and telecommunication costs incurred in connection with the move to our new corporate headquarters

during the second quarter of 2011

Professional fees decreased in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to consulting fees incurred in 2010 associated

with the EnhancedView bid that completed in March 2010 and other non-recurring 2010 accounting fees incurred with the

acquisition of SPADAC in the fourth quarter of 2010 that were not incurred in 2011

Goodwill Impairment

The loss from goodwill impairment for the year ended December 31 2011 was $2.5 million for the excess of the

carrying value of goodwill over the implied fair value of goodwill for GeoEye Analytics resulting from our annual

impairment test This non-cash charge reduces goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisition we made in 2010 and

does not impact our overall business operations including cash flows and debt covenants
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Interest Expense net

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2011

2011 2010 and 2010

in thousands except percentages
Interest Expense Net Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount
Interest expense 53138 14.9% 44902 13.6% 8236 18.3%

Capitalized interest 44600 12.5 16580 5.0 28020 169.0

Interest income 289 0.1 404 0.1 115 28.5
Total interest expense

net 8249 2.3 27918 8.5 70.5

Interest expense net includes interest expense on our 2015 and 2016 Notes amortization of prepaid financing costs

and amortization of debt discount offset by capitalized interest and interest income

Interest expense increased during 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to the issuance of $125 million senior

notes in October 2010 The increase in capitalized interest during 2011 as compared to 2010 was due to the increased

construction costs of the GeoEye-2 satellite during 2011 upon which interest is applied

Other Non-Operating Expense

We recorded other non-operating expense of $24.5 million in 2010 related to the fair value measurement of the

Preferred Stock Commitment associated with the Cerberus Stock Purchase Agreement The Preferred Stock Commitment fair

value was adjusted to market and reflected as an adjustment to earnings and added to additional paid-in-capital when
Cerberus purchased the Preferred Stock on September 22 2010

Gain from In vestments

In coimection with the acquisition of SPADAC in 2010 we recognized gain of $2.5 million resulting from the

increase in the estimated fair value of our non-controlling interest in SPADAC prior to the acquisition During the third

quarter of 2010 we liquidated our holdings in another cost-method investment and recorded gain of $0.7 million

Write-off of Prepaid Financing Costs

In 2010 we wrote-off unamortized prepaid financing costs of $6.4 million including $2.0 million non-refundable

commitment fee related to costs incurred on the debt financing under the Notes Purchase Agreement with Cerberus In

August 2010 the NGA awarded the Company the EnhancedView contract without letter-of-credit requirement and as

result the debt
facility was cancelled and these financing costs were expensed

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $33.3 million and $23.4 million for 2011 and 2010 respectively Tax provisions

were calculated using our annual effective tax rate of approximately 37.0 percent and 48.7 percent for 2011 and 2010
respectively The decrease in our annual effective tax rate is primarily due to the tax benefit of the research and development

credit offset by certain expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes mainly the non-recurring non-deductible book

charges related to the goodwill impairment adjustment in 2011 and the fair value adjustment of the preferred stock

commitment in 2010

The total federal and state net operating loss carryforwards are approximately $276.2 million and $150.0 million as

of 2011 and 2010 respectively The net operating loss carryforwards will expire between tax years 2024 and 2031 and are

expected to be fully realized We had tax credit carryforwards of approximately $10.1 million of which $8.8 million expire

on various dates through 2026

The statutes of limitation for income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions for tax

years 2006 through 2010 have not expired thus these years remain subject to examination by the IRS and state jurisdictions

Significant state jurisdictions that remain subject to examination include Colorado and Missouri for tax years 2006 through

2010 and Virginia for tax years 2007 through 2010 For tax years for which we are no longer subject to federal state and

local tax examinations by tax authorities the tax attribute carryforwards generated from these years may still be adjusted

upon examination by tax authorities
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Comparison of the Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31 2010 and 2009

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2010

2010 2009 and 2009

in thousands except percentages

Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Revenues 330345 100.0% 271102 100.0% 59243 21.9%

Operating expenses

Direct costs of revenue

exclusive of

depreciation and

amortization 104010 31.5 94693 34.9 9317 9.8

Depreciation and

amortization 65262 19.8 57166 21.1 8096 14.2

Selling general and

administrative 57451 17.4 46608 17.2 10843 23.3

Total operating

expenses 226723 68.6 198467 73.2 28256 14.2

Income from operations 103622 31.4 72635 26.8 30987 42.7

Interest expense net 27918 8.5 31020 11.4 3102 10.0

Other non-operating

expense 24466 7.4 24466 100.0

Gain from investments 3200 1.0 3200 100.0

Loss from early

extinguishment of debt... 37 0.0 27127 10.0 27090 99.9

Write-off of prepaid

financing costs 6412 1.9 6412 100.0

Income before provision

benefit for income taxes. 47989 14.5 14488 5.3 33501 231.2

Provision benefit for

income taxes 23352 7.1 17573 6.5 40925 232.9

Net income 24637 7.5 32061 11.8 7424 23.2

Preferred stock dividends... 1107 0.3 1107 100.0

Net income less preferred

stock dividends 23530 7.1 32061 11.8 8531 26.6

Income allocated to

participating securities 783 0.2 783 100.0

Net income available to

common stockholders 22747 6.9 32061 11.8 9314 29.1

Revenues

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2010

2010 2009 and 2009

in thousands except percentages

Revenues Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Imagery 249698 75.6% 206417 76.1% 43281 21.0%

NextView cost-share 24153 7.3 21062 7.8 3091 14.7

Production and other

services 56494 17.1 43623 16.1 12871 29.5

Total revenues $330345 100.0 271102 100.0 59243 21.9

Imagery revenues increased primarily due to the increased level of deliveries to the NGA and other regional affiliate

and domestic commercial customers using GeoEye- for the full twelve months of 2010 as compared to ten-and-a-half

months in 2009 as result of commencement of GeoEye-1 operations in February 2009 and revenues related to the delivery

of customer imagery system upgrades in 2010 NextView cost-share revenues increased in 2010 as compared to 2009

primarily due to revenue being recognized for the full twelve months of 2010 as compared to ten-and-one-half months in

2009 as result of commencement of GeoEye- operations in February 2009
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Production and other services revenues increased in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to an increase in our

value-added production services resulting from higher customer demand and system process improvements and

enhancements and resulting from the commencement of our Web-based dissemination services in 2010

Total domestic and international revenues were as follows

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2010

2010 2009 and 2009

in thousands except percentages

Revenues Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Domestic 244826 74.1% 196722 72.6% 48104 24.5%

International 85519 25.9 74380 27.4 11139 15.0

Total revenues 330345 100.0 271102 100.0 59243 21.9

Domestic revenues increased in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to the increase in imagery provided by

GeoEye- under the NextView and EnhancedView SLA agreements for full twelve months of 2010 compared to ten-and-a-

half months in 2009 and an increase in deliveries to commercial customers in 2010 Additionally there was an increase in

production services due to higher customer demand and system process improvements and enhancements

International revenues increased in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to an increase from the recognition of

revenues from ground system upgrades and an increase in deliveries to regional affiliate customers including the delivery of

customer imagery system upgrade

Operating Expenses

Direct Costs of Revenue

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2010

2010 2009 and 2009

in thousands except percentages

Direct Costs of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount

Labor and overhead 53537 16.2% 48924 18.0% 4613 9.4%

Subcontractor 29541 8.9 27030 10.0 2511 9.3

Satellite insurance 6202 1.9 8235 3.0 2033 24.7
Other direct costs 14730 4.5 10504 3.9 4226 40.2

Total direct costs of

revenue 104010 31.5 94693 34.9 9317 9.8

Labor and overhead costs increased in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to the increase in our value-added

production services resulting from higher customer demand

Subcontractor expenses increased during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to 2010 costs incurred related to

the GeoEye-1 satellite irregularity that occurred in the end of 2009 offset by decrease related to one-time projects and

contracts in 2009 not continued in 2010

Satellite insurance decreased during 2010 compared to 2009 due to the reduction in insurance premiums

Other direct costs of revenue increased during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to the costs related to the

delivery of imagery system upgrades sold in the second and third quarters of 2010 and the recognition of costs of ground

system upgrades that are being recognized over the combined delivery term of the service in 2010

31



Depreciation and Amortization

For the Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 ___________________

in thousands except percentages

Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount _______

62620 19.0% 54516 20.1% 8104

2642 0.8 2650 1.0

19.8 57166 21.1 8096

Depreciation increased during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to the full twelve months of depreciation of

GeoEye- in 2010 compared to ten-and-a-half months of depreciation in 2009 as result of commencement of operations of

the GeoEye-1 satellite in February 2009

Amortization expense is primarily associated with acquired contracts and customer relationship intangibles from our

acquisition of MJ Harden and Space Imaging LLC in prior years

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Interest Expense Net

Interest expense

Capitalized interest

Interest income

Total interest expense net

Amount

44902

16580
404

27918

For the Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Change Between 2010

and 2009

Amount

8719

11809

12

3102J

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation

Amortization

Total depreciation
and

amortization

Change Between 2010

and 2009

65262

14.9%

0.3

14.2

8.2%

0.8

5.0

0.5

2.7

For the Year Ended December 31 Change Between 2010

2010 2009 and 2009

Seffing General and in thousands except percentages

Administrative Expenses Amount of Revenue Amount of Revenue Amount _______

Payroll commissions and

related costs 25431 7.7% 22235

Stock-based compensation 5276 1.6 2072

Professional fees 12528 3.8 13450

Research and development 1647 0.5 1399

Other 12569 3.8 7452 ________

Total selling general and

administrative expenses 57451 17.4 46608 17.2 10843 23.3

Total selling general and administrative expenses increased in 2010 compared to 2009 primarily as result of an

increase in stock-based compensation and bonus expense as well as headcount growth and business development costs

related to our sales and marketing efforts to expand our product and service offerings to current and new customers We also

incurred transaction-related expenses in connection with the acquisition
of SPADAC in the fourth quarter of 2010

Additionally we have incurred rental-related costs in the fourth quarter
for our new corporate headquarters

in Hemdon

Virginia to accommodate our growth and to consolidate our operations

Interest Expense net

3196

3204

922
248

5117

14.4%

154.6

6.9
17.7

68.7

in thousands except percentages

of Revenue Amount of Revenue

13.6% 36183 13.3%

5.0 4771 1.8

0.1 392 0.1

8.5 31020 11.4

24.1%

247.5

3.1

10.0

Interest expense
increased during 2010 compared to 2009 primarily due to an increase in our average outstanding

long-term debt Partially offsetting this increase was reduction in our cost of capital from floating rate of at least 12

percent related to the 2012 Notes compared to fixed coupon rate of 9.625 percent and 8.625 percent related to the 2015 and

2016 Notes respectively The increase in capitalized interest during 2010 as compared to 2009 was due to the increased

construction costs of the GeoEye-2 satellite during 2010 on which interest is applied
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Other Non-Operating Expense

We recorded other non-operating expense of $24.5 million in 2010 related to the fair value measurement of the

Preferred Stock Commitment associated with the Cerberus Stock Purchase Agreement The Preferred Stock Commitment fair

value was marked to market and reflected as an adjustment to earnings and added to additional paid-in-capital when Cerberus

purchased the Preferred Stock on September 22 2010

Gain from Investments

In coimection with the acquisition of SPADAC in 2010 we recognized gain of $2.5 million resulting from the

increase in the estimated fair value of our non-controlling interest in SPADAC prior to the acquisition During the third

quarter of 2010 we liquidated our holdings in another cost-method investment and recorded gain of $0.7 million

Loss from Early Extinguishment of Debt

The loss from early extinguishment of debt for the year ended December 31 2009 was $27.1 million due to the

issuance of the 2015 Notes with face value of $400.0 million in October 2009 and repayment of $249.5 million of our 2012

Notes The early extinguishment of debt represents the expensing of the unamortized prepaid financing costs unamortized

discount and tender premium related to the 2012 Notes

Write-off of Prepaid Financing Costs

In 2010 we wrote-off unamortized prepaid financing costs of $6.4 million including $2.0 million non-refundable

commitment fee related to costs incurred on the debt financing under the Notes Purchase Agreement with Cerberus In

August 2010 the NGA awarded the Company the EnhancedView contract without letter-of-credit requirement and as

result the debt facility was cancelled and these financing costs were expensed

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $23.4 million and income tax benefit of $17.6 million for 2010 and 2009

respectively Tax provisions were calculated using our annual effective tax rate of approximately 48.7 percent and 38.8

percent for 2010 and 2009 respectively The increase in our annual effective tax rate is primarily due to the non-recurring

non-deductible book charges related to the fair value adjustment of the preferred stock commitment partially offset by the tax

benefit of the research and development credit Our 2009 income tax benefit is mainly related to restored net operating losses

resulting from an IRS ruling approved in October 2009

The total federal and state net operating loss carryforwards are approximately $150.0 million and $70.3 million as of

2010 and 2009 respectively The net operating loss canyforwards will expire between tax years 2024 and 2030 We had tax

credit carryforwards of approximately $7.4 million of which $6.5 million expires on various dates through 2026

The statutes of limitation for income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions for tax

years 2006 through 2009 have not expired thus these years remain subject to examination by the IRS and state jurisdictions

Significant state jurisdictions that remain subject to examination include Colorado and Missouri for tax years 2006 through

2009 and Virginia for tax years 2007 through 2009 For tax
years for which we are no longer subject to federal state and

local tax examinations by tax authorities the tax attribute carryforwards generated from these years may still be adjusted

upon examination by tax authorities

Liquidity and Capital Resources

December 31 2011 2010 2009

in thousands except ratios

Cash and cash equivalents 188738 283233 208872
Short-term investments 9220 50124

Working capital 166737 302620 259332
Currentratio 2.51 3.41 3.81

Year ended December 31 cash from used in

Operating activities 182908 126693 100207

Investing activities 274425 265921 123034
Financing activities 2978 213589 124966

Capital expenditures included in investing activities above 314524 233736 79090
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The Companys principal sources of liquidity are its cash from operating activities unrestricted cash cash

equivalents short-term investments and accounts receivable Our primary cash needs are for capital expenditures working

capital and debt service

We believe that we currently have sufficient resources to meet our operating requirements through the next twelve

months and to fund the GeoEye-2 program However our ability to continue to be profitable generate positive cash flow

from our operations beyond that period and fund the GeoEye-2 program is dependent on the continued performance of

commercial and government services and adequate customer acceptance of our products and services

As of December 31 2011 we had $188.7 million of cash and cash equivalents and $9.2 million in short-term

investments We are in strong cash position and continue to make investments in GeoEye-2s development and in the

development of new product and service offerings to current and new customers We expect to continue to fund our capital

expenditures with our existing cash balances cash flows from operating activities and cost-share payments from the U.S

government Our total long-term debt consists of $400.0 million of 2015 Notes net of unamortized discount of $14.0 million

and $125.0 million of 2016 Notes as of December 31 2011

Cash Flow Items

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $182.9 million $126.7 million and $100.2 million in 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

The increase of $56.2 million in 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily related to improved operating performance

and collection of income tax refunds combined with an increase in deferred revenues and decrease in accounts receivable

as compared to the prior year

The increase of $26.5 million in 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily related to improved operating performance

and collection of income tax refunds offset by decline in deferred revenues as compared to the prior year

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $274.4 million $265.9 million and $123.0 million in 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively

During 2011 cash used in investing activities of $274.4 million was primarily attributable to capital expenditures of

$314.5 million including $44.6 million of capitalized interest and redemptions of short-term investments of $40.8 million

The increase in net cash used in investing activities of $8.5 million compared to 2010 was primarily due to increased

expenditures related to the construction of GeoEye-2 in 2011 and the transfer from restricted cash of $47.8 million in 2010

which reduced the total cash used in investing activities in 2010 These increases were partially offset by redemptions of

short-term investments in 2011 and the acquisition of SPADAC in 2010 and purchases of short-term investments in 2010 As

of December 31 2011 we have incurred total capitalized costs of $578.7 million for EnhancedView primarily consisting of

costs for the construction of GeoEye-2 including $63.0 million of capitalized interest

During 2010 cash used in investing activities of $265.9 million was primarily attributable to capital expenditures of

$233.7 million and cash consideration of $31.5 million related to the acquisition of SPADAC Transfers in from restricted

cash were offset by purchases of short-term investments for net cash used of $2.4 million The increase in capital

expenditures of $154.6 million compared to 2009 was primarily due to expenditures related to the construction of GeoEye-2

that were incurred in 2010 As of December 31 2010 we had incurred total capitalized costs of $309.9 million for

EnhancedView primarily consisting of costs for the construction of GeoEye-2

In 2009 we incurred $36.9 million of capital expenditures for GeoEye-2 In addition there was net transfer to

restricted cash of $47.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2009 as result of the net proceeds of the 2015 Notes that are

restricted for construction of new high-resolution satellite As of December 31 2009 we had incurred total capitalized costs

of $66.8 million for EnhancedView primarily consisting of costs for the construction of GeoEye-2

Net Cash Used in Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash used in provided by financing activities was $3 .0 million $213.6 million and $125.0 million in 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively

During 2011 the primary use of cash for financing activities was the payment of $4.0 million of preferred stock

dividends
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During 2010 we issued senior secured notes net of underwriting and financing costs of $121.0 million which was

used for general corporate purposes and we issued convertible preferred stock to Cerberus resulting in net proceeds of $78.0

million after discounts Additionally we received funds of $19.5 million for the issuances of common stock primarily due to

the exercise of warrants

In 2009 we issued senior secured notes net of discount and net of financing costs of $377.1 million which was used

to pay for the repurchase of our 2012 Notes plus accrued interest In addition we received funds in the amount of $15.4

million for the issuances of common stock primarily due to the exercise of warrants

Long-Term Debt

In October 2010 we closed on publicly registered debt offering of $125.0 million of our 2016 Notes due October

2016 The 2016 Notes bear interest at 8.625 percent per annum Interest payments on the 2016 Notes will be made semi

annually in arrears on April and October of each year At any time on or after October 2013 the Company may on one

or more occasions redeem all or part of the 2016 Notes at 104.313 percent of principal for the subsequent 12-month period

at 102.156 percent of principal on October 2014 for the subsequent 12-month period and at 100 percent of principal on

October 2015 and thereafter The net proceeds of the 2016 Notes offering are being used for general corporate purposes

which may include working capital future production and services expansion capital expenditures and other strategic

opportunities The 2016 Notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on secured second-priority basis

In October 2009 we closed on private placement offering of $400.0 million of our 2015 Notes due October

2015 The net proceeds of the 2015 Notes offering were used to fund the repurchase of the Companys outstanding $250.0

million 2012 Notes due July 2012 The 2015 Notes bear interest at the rate of 9.625 percent per annum Interest is payable

semi-annually in arrears on April and October of each year At any time on or after October 2013 GeoEye Inc may on

one or more occasions redeem all or part of the 2015 Notes at 104.813 percent of principal for the subsequent 12-month

period and at 100 percent of principal on October 2014 and thereafter The 2015 Notes are unconditionally guaranteed

jointly and severally on senior secured basis

As of December 31 2011 our total long-term debt consisted of $125.0 million of 2016 Notes and $400.0 million of

2015 Notes net of original issue discount of $14.0 million Under the indentures governing the 2016 and 2015 Notes we are

prohibited from paying dividends on our common stock until the principal amount of all such notes has been repaid

The indentures goveming our 2016 Notes and 2015 Notes contain covenants that restrict our ability to incur

additional indebtedness unless among other things we can comply with fixed charge coverage ratios We may incur

additional indebtedness only if after giving pro forma effect to that incurrence our ratio of adjusted cash EBITDA to total

consolidated debt for the four fiscal quarters ending as of the most recent date for which internal financial statements are

available meet certain levels or we have availability to incur such indebtedness under certain baskets in the indentures

Adjusted cash EBITDA is defined as Adjusted EBITDA less amortization of deferred revenue related to the NextView

agreement with the NGA in the indenture governing the 2015 Notes and as Adjusted EBITDA less amortization of deferred

revenue related to the NextView EnhancedView or any successor agreement with the NGA in the indenture governing the

2016 Notes As of December 31 2011 we were in compliance with all covenants associated with each of our borrowings

Equity Sources and Uses

In March 2010 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreement and Note Purchase Agreement with

Cerberus Satellite LLC or Cerberus for the sale of its Series Convertible Preferred Stock or Series Preferred Stock In

September 2010 pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement and as result of the EnhancedView award by the

NGA being made without the letter-of-credit requirement Cerberus purchased 80000 shares of Series Preferred Stock

having liquidation preference of $1000 per
share This resulted in net proceeds to the Company of $78.0 million after

discounts and before issuance costs The Series Preferred Stock is convertible on issuance at the option of the holders at

conversion rate of $29.76 per common share which is equivalent to conversion rate of 2.7 million shares of common stock

of the Company

The March 2010 Stock Purchase Agreement represented financial instrument not in the form of share which

contained conditional obligation on the part of the Company to redeem its equity shares by transferring assets in the future

It was therefore presented as liability and was initially and subsequently measured at fair value until Cerberus purchased

the Series Preferred Stock on September 22 2010 During the year ended December 31 2010 the change in the value of

the financial instrument resulted in other non-operating expense of $24.5 million
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The Series Preferred Stock represents an ownership interest assuming conversion of such Series Preferred

Stock to the Companys common stock of approximately 11 percent as of December 31 2011 Dividends on the Series

Preferred Stock are payable quarterly in arrears at rate of percent per annum of the liquidation preference of $1000 per

share subject to declaration by the Board of Directors The Company declared dividends on the Series Preferred Stock of

$4.0 million and $1.1 million during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The dividend payable of

$1.0 million was included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Contracted Backlog

We have historically had and currently have substantial contracted backlog Backlog increases the visibility of our

revenues and net cash provided by operating activities The following table represents our estimated backlog as of December

31 2011

Backlog to be recognized Contract Backlog Funded and Unfunded Backlog

2012 Beyond 2012
__________________

Unfunded Total

$150.0

24.2

36.7
________ _______ __________ _________

210.9

42.9

34.7

EnhancedView SLA 2435.2

EnhancedView cost-share amortization 336.9

NextView cost-share amortization 123.8

Other U.S government 673.2

Subtotal Total U.S government 3569.1

International 18.1

North American commercial 32.7

Total Backlog 288.5 3619.9

Total contract backlog includes all contractual commitments the expected amounts to be awarded and funded under

these contracts and the amount of future option periods under these contract awards that are expected to be exercised and

funded Of our contract backlog as of December 31 2011 we expect to realize as revenue $288.5 million in 2012 and the

balance of $3.62 billion in future periods subject to funding and contract performance Of our contract backlog as of

December 31 2011 $540.1 million is currently funded the remaining balance of $3.37 billion represents the value of our

current contracts including their unexercised option years which the Company currently expects to be exercised or funded in

future periods

Total contract backlog includes the following items the remaining portion of the ten-year term of the

EnhancedView SLA with the NGA infrastructure design and procurement services under the EnhancedView contract with

the NGA the value of unfunded value-added products and services awarded under the EnhancedView program on specific

delivery order access fee agreements regional affiliate ground station operations and maintenance contracts with our

international regional affiliate customers commercial imagery contracts other value-added products and services and

remaining unamortized revenue from the NGA NextView cost-share payments made prior to the GeoEye- satellite

becoming fully operational

In addition as part
of the EnhancedView agreement the NGA has agreed to contribute to the overall construction

and launch costs of the GeoEye-2 satellite and associated ground station equipment The GeoEye-2 cost share payments are

included in the backlog table and will be paid to the Company upon completion of the performance milestones and will be

recorded as deferred revenue until full acceptance by the NGA Upon acceptance revenue from the cost share payments will

be recognized over the expected operational life of the satellite

The EnhancedView SLA contract is structured as one-year contract with nine
one-year

renewal options

exercisable by the NGA On October 2011 the Company entered into an amendment to the EnhancedView SLA with the

NGA exercising the first renewal option year
which extended the SLA performance period through August 31 2012 As of

December 31 2011 the amount of the SLA currently funded was $13.6 million After year end the Company received $25.8

million of incremental funding for the current years SLA from the NGA

Most of our government contracts including the EnhancedView program are funded incrementally on month-to-

month or year-to-year basis however certain foreign government and commercial customers have signed multi-year

contracts Changes in U.S government policies priorities or funding levels could materially and adversely affect our

financial condition liquidity and results of operations Furthermore contracts with the U.S government may be terminated

or suspended by the U.S government at any time with or without cause which could result in reduction in our backlog As

result these backlog amounts may and will fluctuate and may not be reliable indicator of future revenues For risks

associated with our business and government contracts please see Item 1A Risk Factors

Total Funded

in millions

$2585.2 13.6

336.9 181.0

148.0 148.0

709.9 81.2

3780.0 423.8

61.0 61.0

67.4 55.3

$3908.4 540.1

2571.6

155.9

628.7

3356.2

_______ 12.1

3368.3

2585.2

336.9

148.0

709.9

3780.0

61.0

67.4

3908.4
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Capital Expenditures

For 2011 our capital expenditures included $284.9 million for satellites and ground systems including $44.6

million of capitalized interest and $29.6 million for property plant and equipment

We currently expect that total capital expenditures for 2012 will be approximately $315.0 million of which $288.0

million should be related to our continued construction of GeoEye-2 and related insfrastructure under the EnhancedView

program including $53.0 million of capitalized interest Also during 2012 we expect to incur additional capital expenditures

of approximately $27.0 million We intend to fund our capital expenditure requirements through cash on hand cash provided

by operating activities and the EnhancedView cost-share payment

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We lease various real properties under operating leases that generally require us to pay taxes insurance

maintenance and minimum lease payments Some of our leases have options to renew

We do not have any other significant off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have
current or future effect on our financial condition results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2011

Payments due by year

2017 and

Contractual Obligations 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 thereafter Total

in thousands

Long-term debt obligations

400000 $125000 525000
Interest payments on long-

term debt 49281 49281 49281 49281 10781 207905

Operating lease obligations

11489 15993 18283 17374 17752 15324 96215

Purchase obligations 144638 26926 840 560 172964

Total contractual

obligations 205408 92200 68404 467215 $153533 15324 1002084

Represents contractual interest payment obligations on the $400.0 million outstanding principal balance of our 2015

Notes which bear interest at rate per annum of 9.625% and contractual interest payment obligations on the $125.0

million outstanding principal balance of our 2016 Notes which bear interest at rate per armum of 8.625%

Purchase obligations include all commitments to purchase goods or services of either fixed or minimum quantity

that are enforceable and legally binding As of December 31 2011 purchase obligations include EnhancedView
related commitments ground systems and communication services

Operating Leases

We have commitments for operating leases primarily relating to office and operating facilities and equipment We
lease various real properties under operating leases that generally require us to pay taxes insurance maintenance and

minimum lease payments These leases contain escalation provisions for increases as result of increases in real estate taxes

and operating expenses We recognize rent expense under such leases on straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Substantially all of these leases have lease terms ranging from three to twelve years Some of our leases have options to

renew

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was

approximately $4.4 million $3.3 million and $2.2 million respectively

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation has not had material impact on our results of operations for any of the years in the three

year period ended December 31 2011 We cannot assure that future inflation will not have an adverse impact on our

operating results and financial condition
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preceding discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated

financial statements which have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America or GAAP The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make

estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues expenses and related disclosures On

an ongoing basis we evaluate estimates and assumptions including but not limited to those related to the impairment of

long-lived assets and goodwill revenue recognition satellites and related ground systems stock-based compensation and

income taxes We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable

under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates under different

assumptions or conditions

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the

preparation of our consolidated financial statements and are found in Note of our Notes To Consolidated Financial

Statements

Revenue Recognition

Satellites and Related Ground Systems

Asset Impairment Assessments

Income Taxes

Stock-Based Compensation

Recent and Pending Accounting Pronouncements

See Note of our Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements for full description of recent accounting

pronouncements and our expectation of their impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

We are not currently exposed to the market risk associated with unfavorable movements in interest rates All of our

debt as of December 31 2011 is fixed-rate At December 31 2011 the estimated fair value of our long-term debt instruments

was approximately $574.5 million compared with carrying value of $511.0 million excluding the $14.0 million

unamortized discount While changes in interest rates impact the fair value of our debt there is no impact to earnings and

cash flows because we intend to carry the debt to maturity unless market and other conditions are favorable Our available-

for-sale investments generally renew every seven days and therefore are classified as short-term investments due to our

ability to quickly liquidate or put back these securities These financial instruments may be subject to interest rate risk

through lost income should interest rates increase during their limited term to maturity or resetting of interest rates and thus

may limit our ability to invest in higher-income earning investments

We do not currently have any material foreign currency exposure Our subsidiary in Asia commenced operations in

January 2010 our revenue contracts are denominated in U.S dollars and the majority of our purchase contracts are

denominated in U.S dollars
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GeoEye Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Geoflye Inc and subsidiaries as of December

31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the

C.ompanys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of GeoEye Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States GeoEye Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO and our report dated March 13 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

McLean Virginia

March 13 2012
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GEOEYE INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 December 31
2011 2010

In thousands except per share amounts
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 188738 283233

Short-term investments 9220 50124
Accounts receivable trade and unbilled receivables net of allowances

2011 $718 2010- $957 39917 42868
Income tax receivable 19645 34385
Restricted cash 4207 3952
Current deferred tax assets 2148

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 14805 16183

Total current assets 278680 430745

Property plant and equipment net 48065 35924
Satellites and related ground systems net 913454 697126
Goodwill 68130 71568
Intangible assets net 10526 14943
Non-current restricted cash 6875 10822

Other non-current assets 8855 7957
Total assets 1334585 1269085

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 58510 70936
Current portion of deferred revenue 53433 50533

Current deferred tax liabilities 6656
Total current liabilities 111943 128125

Long-term debt 511019 508160
Long-term deferred revenue net of current portion 131968 161673

Deferred tax liabilities 64694 21336
Other non-current liabilities 7674 6548

Total liabilities 827298 825842

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity

Series convertible preferred stock par value $.01 80 shares authorized

80 shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2011

and2OlO

Series junior participating preferred stock no par value 50 shares

authorized shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2011 and

2010

Common stock par value $.0 50000 shares authorized 22215 and

22061 shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively 222 221

Additional paid-in capital 379154 367723

Retained earnings 127910 75298
Total stockholders equity 507287 443243

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 1334585 1269085

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GEOEYE INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

In thousands except per share amounts

Revenues 356407 330345 271102

Operating expenses

Direct costs of revenue exclusive of depreciation and amortization 122972 104010 94693

Depreciation and amortization 71840 65262 57166

Selling general and administrative 60921 57451 46608

Goodwill impairment 2500

Total operating expenses 258233 226723 198467

Income from operations 98174 103622 72635

Interest expense net 8249 27918 31020
Other non-operating expense 24466
Gain from investments 3200
Loss from early extinguishment of debt 37 27127
Write-off of prepaid financing costs 6412
Income before provision benefit for income taxes 89925 47989 14488

Provision benefit for income taxes 33313 23352 17573

Net income 56612 24637 32061

Preferred stock dividends 4000 1107
Net income less preferred stock dividends 52612 23530 32061

Income allocated to participating securities 5701 783
Net income available to common stockholders 46911 22747 32061

Earnings per share

Earnings per common share basic 2.12 1.05 1.71

Earnings per common share diluted 2.06 1.02 1.55

Shares used to compute basic earnings per share 22119 21622 18753

Shares used to compute diluted earnings per share 22788 22250 20685

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GEOEYE INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Common Stock

Total

Stockholders

Equity

230404

32061

14646

750

Retained

Series Convertible Additional Earnings

Preferred Stock Paid-In Accumulated

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit

In thousands except share amounts
Balance as of December 31 2008 18422 184 210513 19707
Net income 32061
Warrants exercised 1407 14 14632

Issuance of common stock 94 749

Surrender of common stock to cover

employees minimum tax liability 14 277 277
Stock-based compensation 2371 2371

Balance as of December 31 2009 19912 199 227988 51768 279955

Net income 24637 24637
Warrants exercised 1832 18 18305 18323
Issuance of common stock 319 10426 10430

Surrender of common stock to cover

employees minimum tax liability 137 137
Foreign currency translation adjustment 56 56
Stock-based compensation 6877 6877

Issuance of preferred stock 80 104320 104321

Preferred stock dividends 1107 1107
Balance as of December 31 2010 80 367723 75298 443243

Net income 56612 56612

Issuance of common stock 1158 1159
Surrender of common stock to cover

employees minimum tax liability 1352 1352
Foreign currency translation adjustment

and other 34 34

Stock-based compensation 11591 11591

Preferred stock dividends 4000 4000
Balance as of December 31 2011 22215 222 80 379154 127910 507287

22061 221

154
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GEOEYE INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Netincome 56612 24637 32061

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 71840 65262 57166

Non-cash recognition of deferred revenue 34679 31733 24477
Non-cash amortization of deferred costs 3852 4337 1645

Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs 3844 3529 3356

Loss from early extinguishment of debt 37 27077

Change in fair value of financial instruments 24466 11

Impairment and other write-offs 4678 6412

Gain from investments 3200
Deferred income taxes 33301 23342 5637

Stock-based compensation 10520 6877 2371

Bad debt expense
and other 214 379 194

Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects of business combinations

Accounts receivable and other current assets 2153 6729 12474

Net transfer from to restricted cash 3692 2831 17605
Other assets 106 329

Accounts payable accrued expenses and current liabilities 3749 2098 8768
Income taxes receivable payable and reserves 15413 5477 4619

Deferred revenue and other long-term liabilities 7613 32 29065

Net cash provided by operating activities 182908 126693 100207

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditures 314524 233736 79090
Net transfer from to restricted cash 47757 47757

Redemptions of short-term investments 40780 3813

Acquisition of Geohye Analytics 319 31454
Investment @urchase/sale 1000 1700

Purchases of short-term investments 50188
Net cash used in investing activities 274425 265921 123034

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt net of issuance costs 120962 377094

Proceeds from issuance of convertible preferred stock net of issuance costs. 77761

Preferred stock dividend payments 4000 100

Repayment of long-term debt 266965

Prepaid financing costs 118 4547
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants and other 1140 19513 14837

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 2978 213589 124966

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 94495 74361 102139

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 283233 208872 106733

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 188738 283233 208872

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Interest paid net of capitalized interest of $44600 $16580 and $4771

respectively 4471 21598 35161

Incometaxespaid 31 17969 3215

Transfer of derivative liability to preferred stock value 26560

Non-cash surrender of common stock to cover employees minimum tax

liability 1352 137 277
Non-cash issuance of common stock for services provided 250

Common stock issued for SPADAC acquisition 9026

Non-cash dividend accrual 1008 1007

Non-cash consideration on customer transaction 1920

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GEOEYE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2011

Business

GeoEye is leading provider of geospatial information and insight for decision makers and analysts who need

clear understanding of our changing world to protect lives manage risk and optimize resources Each day organizations in

defense and intelligence public safety critical infrastructure energy and online media rely on GeoEyes Earth imagery

geospatial expertise and enabling technology to support important missions around the globe Widely recognized as pioneer

in high-resolution satellite imagery OeoEye has evolved into complete provider of geospatial intelligence solutions

We own and operate two Earth-imaging satellites GeoEye-1 and IKONOS and three airplanes with advanced high-

resolution imagery collection capabilities GeoEye-l is the worlds highest resolution and most accurate commercial Earth-

imaging satellite

In addition to our imagery collection capacities we are global leader in the creation of enhanced satellite imagery

information products and services We operate state-of-the-art high-resolution image processing and production facilities in

St Louis Missouri and Thornton Colorado Our St Louis Missouri facility processes imagery from numerous commercial

and government sensors in addition to our own enhanced satellite imagery information products and services to produce

variety of value-added products We believe we are the only major commercial imagery satellite operator who can produce

imagery from multiple Earth imagery sources in addition to our own enhanced satellite imagery information products and

services

GeoEyes information services allow its customers to collect process
and analyze vast amounts of geospatial data to

quickly see precise changes on the ground and anticipate where events may occur in the future Our Web-based information

services platform EyeQ can provide imagery services and other layers of geospatial information on demand EyeQ combines

imagery products with on-demand tools for managing geospatial information and project-based collaboration GeoEye

Analytics which provides geospatial predictive analytic solutions has expertise in analyzing multiple layers of intelligence

including human geography to discover patterns in order to gain insights that protect lives optimize deployment of resources

and mitigate risk

We believe the combination of our highly accurate satellite and aerial imaging assets our high-resolution image

processing and production facilitiesespecially our multi-source production capabilityour color digital imagery library

and our information services differentiate us from our competitors This combination enables us to provide elevated insight

by delivering comprehensive range of Earth imagery geospatial expertise and enabling technology to our diverse customer

base

We serve both domestic and international customers with imagery products and information services Our principal

customers are U.S government agencies Most of our government contracts are funded incrementally on year-to-year basis

Our largest government contract the EnhancedView Service Level Agreement or SLA see Note has up to eight

additional one-year renewal options Changes in U.S government policies priorities or funding levels could materially and

adversely affect our financial condition liquidity and results of operations For the year ended December 31 2011 U.S

government agencies represented approximately 64 percent of our total revenues

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GeoEye and all of our wholly owned subsidiaries All

intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation

Certain amounts in the prior period have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States or GAAP requires management to make judgments estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the

Companys consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could differ materially from those

estimates
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Revenue Recognition

Our principal sources of revenue are from imaging services the sale of satellite imagery directly to end users or

value-added resellers the provision of direct access to our satellites associated ground processing technology upgrades and

operations and maintenance services We also derive significant revenue from value-added production services where we

combine our images with data and imagery from our own and other sources to create sophisticated information products

Additionally new sources of revenue include the dissemination and hosting of imagery and the provision of consultation

integration data analysis and other professional services related to geospatial information systems

We record revenues from the sale of satellite imagery directly to end users or value-added resellers based on the

delivery of the imagery This revenue is recognized when the products are delivered to the customer and generally these

arrangements are contracted for separately on stand-alone basis

Sales of direct access to our satellites ordinarily require us to provide access over the term of multi-year sales

contracts under subscription-based arrangements Accordingly we recognize revenues on such imagery contracts on

straight-line basis over the delivery term of the contract However certain multi-year sales contracts are based on minimum

levels of access time with adjustments based on usage In addition to the sale of direct satellite access we may separately sell

ground processing technology upgrades and operations and maintenance services to customer in bundled arrangement

Prior to 2011 to determine revenue recognition for multiple element arrangements we considered whether individual

customer arrangement elements had value to the customer on standalone basis whether there was objective and reliable

evidence of fair value of undelivered items and whether the arrangement included general right of return relative to the

delivered items and delivery performance of the undelivered items was considered probable and substantially in the

Companys control If the satellite access service is combined with the sale of ground processing technology upgrades and

operations and maintenance services and the requirements for separate revenue recognition are not met we recognize

revenues on straight-line basis over the combined delivery term of the services In other arrangements when the separation

criteria are met total arrangement consideration is allocated to each separate unit of accounting using relative fair value

Revenues are recognized over the appropriate service period access and operations and maintenance are recognized over the

contract term and ground processing technology upgrades are recognized when delivery and acceptance is complete We

consider deliverable to have standalone value if the product or service provides value to the customer independent from

other elements in the arrangement or if the product or service is sold separately by us or if it could be resold by the customer

Our revenue arrangements generally do not include general right of return relative to the delivered products

Beginning on January 2011 we adopted on prospective basis the guidance on revenue from multiple

deliverable arrangements from the Financial Accounting Standards Board or FASB With the adoption of this guidance the

inability to determine the fair value of undelivered items will no longer preclude our ability to separate deliverables in

multiple element arrangements Instead managements estimated selling price will be used to allocate the contract value

among the deliverables assuming all other separation criteria are met We determine estimated selling price by considering

several external and internal factors including but not limited to pricing practices margin objectives estimated costs to

deliver the offerings competition and customer type As these factors evolve we may modif our estimated selling prices

in the future for purposes
of allocating arrangement consideration to agreements with multiple elements Estimated selling

prices are analyzed on an annual basis or more frequently if we experience significant changes in our estimated selling prices

and the factors that affect or determine the estimated selling prices The introduction of this accounting guidance has not

materially impacted our consolidated financial statements

Revenue is recognized on contracts to provide value-added production services using the percentage-of-completion

method Revenue is recognized under different acceptable alternatives of the percentage-of-completion method depending on

the terms of the underlying contract which include input measures based on costs and efforts expended or output measures

based on units of delivery or completion of contractual milestones Costs associated with products not yet delivered at year-

end are recorded as work in progress Costs of $0.1 million were recorded in work in progress at both December 31 2011

and 2010 Revenues recognized in advance of becoming billable are recorded as unbilled receivables Such amounts

generally do not become billable until after the products have been completed and delivered Total unbilled accounts

receivable were $6.6 million and $3.4 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively Generally these arrangements

are sold on standalone basis and are not bundled with other product offerings To the extent that estimated costs of

completion are adjusted revenue and profit recognized from particular contract will be affected in the period of the

adjustment Anticipated contract losses are recognized as they become known Losses recognized during 2011 and 2010 were

immaterial

We record revenues generated from the information services base offerings including dissemination and hosting of

imagery on straight-line basis over the subscription period
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Revenues for consultation and professional services are recognized as the services are performed Revenues from

time and materials contracts are recognized based on man-hours utilized plus other reimbursable contract costs incurred

during the period Revenues from firm-fixed price contracts are recognized on percentage of completion basis utilizing the

relationship of contract costs incurred and managements estimate of total contract costs Revenues from cost-reimbursable

contracts are recognized based on costs incurred with applied estimated or contractually specified indirect cost rates and our

contractually specified fee or profit margin

Deferred revenue represents receipts in advance of the delivery of imagery or services Revenue for other services is

recognized as services are performed In addition cost-share amounts received from the U.S government are recorded as

deferred revenue when received and recognized on straight-line basis over the useful life of the satellite

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts due from customers and primarily include international customers U.S

government customers and commercial customers Allowances for doubtful accounts receivable balances are recorded when

circumstances indicate that collection is doubtful for particular accounts receivable or for all probable losses of accounts

receivable not specifically identified Management estimates such allowances based on historical evidence such as amounts

that are subject to risk Accounts receivable are written off if reasonable collection efforts are not successful

The changes in our allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows in thousands

Balance at Balance at

Beginning Charged to End of

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts of Period Operations Write-offs Period

Year ended December 31 2009 738 194 923

Year ended December31 2010 923 366 332 957

Year ended December31 2011 957 37 276 718

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to employees and directors based on the estimated fair value

of the award at the grant date The associated expense net of estimated forfeitures is recognized ratably over the requisite

service period which is generally the maximum vesting period of the award Further information regarding stock-based

compensation can be found in Note 19 Stock Incentive Plans

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be cash

equivalents These investments generally consist of money market investments

Restricted Cash

The Company is party to irrevocable standby letters of credit in connection with contracts between GeoEye and third parties

in the ordinary course of business to serve as performance obligation guarantees As of December 31 2011 the Company
had $11.1 million classified as restricted cash as result of the irrevocable standby letters of credit Approximately $4.2

million is available within one year and is classified as current and the remaining $6.9 million is available through 2022

In vestments

We record our investments in debt securities at amortized cost or fair value and classifi these securities as short-

term investments on the consolidated balance sheet when the original maturities at purchase are greater than ninety days but

less than one year

The Companys short-term investments consist of debt securities that include commercial paper corporate bonds

agency notes variable rate demand notes and certificates of deposit Investments in debt securities that the Company has the

positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are recorded at amortized cost and classified as held-to-maturity Investments in

debt securities that are not classified as held-to-maturity are carried at fair value and classified as available-for-sale As of

December 31 2011 short-term investments consisted of variable rate demand notes
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We evaluate our investments for other-than-temporary impairment on quarterly basis Other-than-temporary

impairment occurs when the fair value of an investment is below our carrying value and we determine that difference is not

recoverable in the near future Factors we consider to make such determination include the duration and severity of the

impairment the reason for the decline in value and the potential recovery period and our intent to sell or whether it is more

likely than not that we will be required to sell the investment before recovery
of the amortized cost basis

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we categorized our investments as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity

and all of these outstanding short-term investments mature within one year Although the variable-rate demand notes have

long-term contractual maturity dates of 20 to 30 years the interest rates reset weekly Despite the long-term nature of the

underlying securities they are classified as short-term due to our ability to quickly liquidate or put back these securities

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Companys cash and cash equivalents are placed in or with various financial institutions We have not

experienced losses on such accounts and do not believe we have any significant risk in this area

Much of the Companys revenues are generated through contracts with the U.S government U.S govemment

agencies may terminate or suspend their contracts at any time with or without cause or may change their policies priorities

or funding levels by reducing agency or program budgets or by imposing budgetary constraints If U.S government agency

terminates or suspends any of its contracts with the Company or changes its policies priorities or funding levels these

actions could have material adverse effect on the business financial condition and results of operations Imagery contracts

with international customers generally are not cancelable pursuant to the terms of such contracts

Satellites and Related Ground Systems and Property Plant and Equipment

Satellites and related ground systems and property plant and equipment are recorded at cost The cost of our

satellites includes capitalized interest cost incurred during the construction and development period In addition capitalized

costs of our satellites and related ground systems include internal direct labor and project management costs incurred in the

construction and development of our satellite and related ground systems We also capitalize certain internal and external

software development costs incurred to develop software for internal use Costs of major enhancements to internal use

software are capitalized while routine maintenance of existing software is charged to expense as incurred

While under construction the costs of our satellites are capitalized during the construction phase assuming the

eventual successful launch and in-orbit operation of the satellite Ground systems are placed into service when they are ready

for their intended use If satellite were to fail during launch or while in-orbit the resulting loss would be charged to expense

in the period in which the loss occurs The amount of any such loss would be reduced to the extent of insurance proceeds

received as result of the launch or in-orbit failure

Depreciation and amortization are provided using the straight-line method as follows

Asset Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 15 to 40 years

Furniture computers equipment and software to years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of estimated useful life or lease term generally to 12 years

Vehicles years

Airplanes
15 years

Ground systems years

Satellites years

Satellite Insurance

We maintain in-orbit insurance policies covering our GeoEye-1 and IKONOS satellites We capitalize the portion of

the premiums associated with the insurance coverage of the launch and in-orbit commissioning period of our commercial

satellites Accordingly prior to the start of GeoEye-1 commercial operations we capitalized portion of insurance

premiums in the cost of the satellite that will be amortized over the estimated life of GeoEye-1 which is nine years

Following launch and in-orbit commissioning insurance premium amounts related to in-orbit operations are charged to

expense ratably over the related policy periods

The Company maintains insurance policies for GeoEye- with both full coverage and total-loss-only coverage
in

compliance with our indenture As of December 31 2011 we carried $260.3 million in-orbit insurance for GeoEye-l

comprised in part by $195.8 million of full coverage to be paid if GeoEye- ls capabilities become impaired as measured

against set of specifications which expires on December 2012 We also carry $64.5 million of insurance in the event of

total loss of the satellite which expires December 2012
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Our IKONOS satellite was fully depreciated in June 2008 The IKONOS satellite is insured for $4.3 million of in-

orbit coverage which expires on December 2012

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the purchase price paid in excess of the fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or whenever an event occurs or circumstances change that could reduce the fair

value of reporting unit below its canying amount As result of the acquisition of SPADAC in December 2010 we
determined that new reporting unit was created As of December 31 2011 GeoEyes reporting units include GeoEye Inc

and GeoEye Analytics

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill we calculate the fair market value at the reporting unit level based upon

discounted cash flows that utilize estimates in annual revenues gross margins and other relevant factors for determining the

fair value If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit the Company compares the

implied value of goodwill with its canying amount If the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of

goodwill an impairment loss would be recognized for the difference between the carrying amount and the implied fair value

of goodwill

Effective October 2011 the Company elected to change the annual impairment test date for goodwill from

December 31 to October The Companys management believes this change in testing date is preferable under the

circumstances because it provides the Company with additional time for the completion of its annual impairment testing in

conjunction with its December 31 year-end closing activities and is better aligned with the timing of its annual budget

process The Company does not believe that this change in annual impairment testing dates will accelerate or delay an

impairment charge or otherwise avoid an impairment charge The Company applied the new annual impairment testing

effective October 12011

Intangible assets arising from business combinations are initially recorded at fair value We amortize intangible

assets with definitive lives on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives which are generally two to ten years We
review for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be

recoverable

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

value of an asset may not be fully recoverable or that the useful lives of these assets are no longer appropriate Impairment

losses are recognized in operating results when the sum of expected discounted net future cash flows is less than the carrying

value of the assets The amount of the impairment is measured as the difference between the assets estimated fair value and

its carrying value Fair market value is determined primarily using the projected future cash flows

Research and Development Costs

We record as research and development expense all internal and external services and supplies costs incurred in the

development of the information services business The Company incurred $2.7 million $1.6 million and $1.4 million in

research and development costs for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Any research and

development expenses incurred are included in selling general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statement of

operations

Preferred Stock

In September 2010 the Company issued Series Convertible Preferred Stock or the Series Preferred Stock par

value of $.01 per share Cumulative dividends on the Series Preferred Stock are payable at rate of percent per annum of

the $1000 liquidation preference per share At the Companys option dividends may be declared and paid in cash out of

funds legally available therefore when as and if declared by the Board of Directors of the Company If not paid in cash an

amount equal to the cash dividends due is added to the liquidation preference Dividends payable in cash are recorded in

current liabilities All dividends payable whether in cash or as an addition to the liquidation preference are recorded as

reduction to our retained earnings
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Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding during the period Net income available to common stockholders is equal to

net income less preferred stock dividends and income allocated to participating securities The Companys preferred shares

are participating securities and require the two-class method of computing earnings per share Diluted earnings per share is

calculated by dividing net income available to common stockholders as adjusted for the effect of dilutive common equivalent

shares by the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period

Common equivalent shares consist of the common shares issuable upon the conversion of the convertible preferred shares

and those issuable related to stock options deferred stock units employee stock purchase plan shares and nonvested stock

using the treasury stock method For purposes of computing diluted earnings per share the if-converted method will be

used to the extent that the result is more dilutive than the application of the two-class method

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets and

liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and

liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be

applied to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse The effect on deferred

tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date The

deferred tax assets are reviewed periodically for recoverability and valuation allowances are provided as necessary

Interest and penalty expenses related to uncertain tax positions are recorded as part of the provision for income

taxes

Recent and Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the FASB issued an update to the guidance

related to disclosures about offsetting assets and liabilities on the balance sheet The updated guidance requires an entity to

disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect

of those arrangements prepared under U.S GAAP with financial statements prepared under International Financial Reporting

Standards or IFRS The guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning January 2013 and

retrospective application is required We are currently evaluating the impact of this accounting guidance and do not expect

any significant impact on our consolidated financial statements

In September 2011 the FASB issued an update to the guidance related to goodwill impairment testing The updated

guidance gives companies the option to first perform qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not

that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is
necessary to

perform the two-step goodwill impairment test If company concludes that this is the case it must perform the two-step test

Otherwise the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required The guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill

impairment tests performed for fiscal
years beginning after December 15 2011 with early adoption permitted The Company

elected to early adopt this accounting guidance at the beginning of its fourth quarter of 2011 on prospective basis for

goodwill impairment tests

In May 2011 the FASB issued new guidance for fair value measurements intended to achieve common fair value

measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRS The guidance modifies the existing standard to include

disclosure of all transfers between Level and Level asset and liability fair value categories In addition it provides

guidance on measuring the fair value of financial instruments managed within portfolio and the application of premiums

and discounts on fair value measurements The guidance requires additional disclosure for Level measurements regarding

the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs and any interrelationships between those inputs The guidance

is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2011 with early adoption prohibited We

are currently evaluating the impact of this accounting guidance and do not expect any significant impact on our consolidated

financial statements

EnhancedView Program

On August 2010 the National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency or NGA awarded us contracts under its

EnhancedView program This competitively awarded contract supports the EnhancedView program by providing products

and services that will help meet the increasing geospatial intelligence needs of the intelligence community and the

Department of Defense During 2011 the Company successfully completed all critical design review milestones related to

the GeoEye-2 satellite development under the EnhancedView contract
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The EnhancedView program award provides for new satellite imagery delivery SLA with the NGA valued at up to

$2.8 billion The EnhancedView SLA initially provides for continued monthly payments by the NGA of up to $12.5 million

$150.0 million
per year subject to maximum reduction of 10 percent in the base

year
and 15 percent in the option years

based on performance metrics Under the EnhancedView SLA to the extent that less than $12.5 million is paid by the NGA
for any month the shortfall can be applied to future products and services or used to fund an extension of the contract When

GeoEye-2 becomes operational and meets NGA certification requirements which we currently expect will occur in 2013
EnjiancedView SLA payments are expected to increase by an additional $15.3 million per month $183.6 million per year
also subject to maximum reduction of 15 percent based on performance metrics The initial term of the EnhancedView SLA
was one year with nine one-year renewal options exercisable by the NGA Imagery deliveries under the EnhancedView SLA

began on September 2010 and the imagery is collected by the Companys existing satellite constellation with GeoEye-2

to collect additional imagery when it becomes operational

As part of the EnhancedView contract the NGA has agreed to contribute 42.1 percent of the cost up to maximum
of $337.0 million of the overall construction and launch costs of the GeoEye-2 satellite and associated ground station

equipment The contribution will be made in two cost-share payments the first payment of approximately $111.0 million

when the GeoEye-2 satellite is ready for integration and testing and the second payment and balance of the cost-share when
the GeoEye-2 satellite becomes operational and meets NGA certification requirements This award component will be

initially recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue over the expected operational life of the satellite At the time

the final cost-share payment is made it is expected that any credits due to the government will be determined and will be

factored into the final payment amount

The Enhancedyiew program award also provides for up to an estimated $702.0 million for value-added products

and services and our EyeQ Web Mapping Services to be delivered over the life of the EnhancedView SLA This award

component includes funding for the design and procurement of additional infrastructure to support government operations

which will be initially recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue over the contractual term of the

EnhancedView contract

Assuming the NGA exercises all of its options and we perform as specified the EnhancedView contracts are worth

up to $3.8 billion over ten years

On October 2011 the Company entered into an amendment to the EnhancedView SLA with the NGA exercising

the first renewal option under the contract to extend the EnhancedView SLA for the period of October 2011 through

August 31 2012 Previously on August 30 2011 the Company signed an amendment to its SLA with the NGA to extend the

performance period of the base year to October 2011 The amendment also changed the date by which the NGA may
exercise its first of nine one-year renewal options under the EnhancedView SLA from August 31 2011 to October 31 2011
The first of the one-year renewal options was shortened by the amount that the base year was extended by this amendment so

that the date by which NGA may exercise the second option year is August 31 2012

This program replaced the NextView program except that GeoEye will continue to fulfill existing NextView value-

added product and services orders until such orders are complete New value-added product and services orders are expected

to be placed under the EnhancedView contract The NextView SLA portion of the NextView program was replaced by the

EnhancedView SLA as of September 2010 We recognized $147.0 million and $49.0 million of imagery and other revenue

under the EnhaneedView SLA during the
years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

NextView Program

The U.S governments NGA announced in March 2003 that it intended to support through the NextView program
the continued development of the commercial satellite imagery industry The NGA also announced that it intended to award

two imagery providers with contracts to support the engineering construction and launch of the next generation of imagery

satellites On September 30 2004 the NGA awarded us contract as the second provider under the NextView program and
as result we contracted for the construction of new satellite GeoEye- Under the NextView program we began

delivering imagery to the NGA from our IKONOS satellite in February 2007 and from our GeoEye- satellite in the first

quarter of 2009 GeoEye-1 was launched in September 2008 and started commercial operations and obtained certification

from the NGA in February 2009 at which point GeoEye- commenced full operations Total capitalized costs including

financing and launch insurance costs of the GeoEye- satellite and related ground systems incurred were $478.3 million
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Under the NextView contract the NGA agreed to support the GeoEye-1 project with final cost-share of

approximately $217.4 million spread over the course of the project development and subject to various milestones On March

19 2009 the NGA had paid the Company its cost-share obligation in full GeoEye had deferred recognition of the cost-share

amounts from the NGA as revenue until GeoEye- ls in-service date in February 2009 We recognize this revenue on

straight-line basis over the expected nine-year depreciable operational life of the satellite During the years ended December

31 2011 2010 and 2009 we recognized $24.2 million $24.2 million and $21.1 million respectively of deferred revenue

under the NextView contract

The NextView SLA provided for monthly payments of $12.5 million subject to maximum reduction of 10 percent

based on performance metrics Under the NextView SLA to the extent that less than $12.5 million was paid by the NGA in

any month the shortfall was used to fund an extension of the contract The EnhancedView SLA replaced the NextView SLA

portion of the NextView program as of September 2010 We recognized no imagery revenue during the year ended

December 31 2011 under the NextView SLA and $99.2 million and $124.9 million of imagery revenue under the NextView

SLA during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Acquisition

On December 15 2010 the Company completed the purchase of 100 percent of the stock of SPADAC Inc

geospatial predictive analytics company for net purchase price of $43.4 million which includes adjustments for changes to

the tangible net worth of SPADAC as defined in the merger agreement The purchase price consisted of $32.0 million in

cash $8.9 million in restricted stock and $2.5 million of equity in SPADAC owned by the Company prior to the acquisition

With the completion
of the acquisition SPADAC became wholly owned subsidiary named GeoEye Analytics GeoEye

Analytics currently provides geospatial predictive analytic solutions to over 40 customers in key markets of defense

intelligence and homeland security enabling their customers to gain the insight they need to support mission-critical

operations around the world

In connection with the acquisition of SPADAC the Company assumed net assets of $1.1 million recognized $5.9

million of intangibles assets including $3.7 million related to customer relationships $2.0 million related to developed

technology and $0.2 million related to tradenames with estimated useful lives ranging from two to five years and recognized

$36.4 million of goodwill None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes See Note 11 for further

discussion of goodwill

Prior to the acquisition the Company had 4.4 percent ownership interest in SPADAC and accounted for it as

cost-method investment On the acquisition date we recognized gain of $2.5 million resulting from the increase in the fair

value of our non-controlling interest in SPADAC prior to the acquisition This gain was reported within gain from

investments in the consolidated statement of operations

The Companys consolidated financial statements include the operating results of GeoEye Analytics from the date of

the acquisition Pro forma results of operations for this acquisition have not been presented because the financial impact to

the Companys consolidated results of operations is not material

The Company recognized $1.2 million of acquisition-related costs in 2010 as result of this acquisition These costs

were expensed in the period incurred and reported in the Companys consolidated statement of operations in selling general

and administrative expenses

Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 there were no material differences between net income as

reported and comprehensive income

Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share or EPS is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares of the Companys

Common Stock outstanding Diluted EPS is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares of the Companys

Common Stock outstanding and other dilutive securities Securities that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or

dividend equivalents whether paid or unpaid are participating securities and are required to be included in the computation

of basic EPS and diluted EPS pursuant to the two-class method The Companys Series preferred shares are participating

securities
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The following is reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations in
thousands

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share

Net income

Preferred stock dividends

Income allocated to participating securities

Net income available to common stockholders

Denominator

Weighted average shares outstanding used to compute basic earnings per
share

Dilutive effect of

Warrants

Stock options deferred stock units restricted stock units employee stock

purchase plan shares and nonvested stock

Weighted average shares outstanding and dilutive securities used to

compute diluted earnings per share

For The Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

56612 24637 32061

4000 1107
52612 23530 32061

5701 783
46911 22747 32061

22119 21622 18753

118 1710

669 510 222

22788 22250 20685

For each of the
years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 2.7 million potential common shares from the conversion

of preferred stock and 0.3 million stock options and nonvested stock awards were excluded from the
computation of dilutive

EPS as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive For the year ended December 31 2009 outstanding stock options to

purchase 0.2 million shares of our common stock were excluded from the computation of dilutive EPS as the effect would
have been anti-dilutive See Note 19 Stock Incentive Plans for information on option exercise prices and expiration dates

and restricted stock units

Investments

Short-term investments consisted of the following at December 31 2011 and 2010 in thousands

December 31 2010

Available-for-sale securities

Variable-rate demand notes

Held-to-maturity securities

Commercial
paper

Corporate bonds

Agency notes

Certificates of deposit

19973

5160

5000

10000

Total short-term investments 50124 50133

As of December 31 2011 there were no other-than-temporary impairments of the Companys investments

Amortized

cost

Gross unrecognized

Estimated

fair value
December 31 2011 Gains Losses

Available-for-sale securities

Variable-rate demand notes 9220 9220

Total short-term investments 9220 9220

Gross unrecognized

Amortized Estimated

cost Gains Losses fair value

10000 10000

19969

5155

5000

10000
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Property Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings

Furniture computers equipment and software

Leasehold improvements

Vehicles and airplanes

Accumulated depreciation

Subtotal

Property plant and equipment in process

Property plant and equipment net

2011 2010

7419 7297

53113 42724

19405 3460

2228

29467
26242

9682

___________
35924

2181

36713
45405

2660

48065

2011

Satellites 411105

Ground systems 89984

Accumulated depreciation 169281

Subtotal 331808

Satellites and ground systems in process 581646

Satelilites and related ground systems net 913454

Included in satellites and ground systems in process are total capitalized costs related to the Companys

development efforts to build our next Earth-imaging satellite GeoEye-2

As of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 we have incurred total capitalized costs of $578.7 million and

$309.9 million respectively related to the Companys development efforts for EnhancedView primarily consisting of costs

for the development of and construction of GeoEye-2 Included in these costs is capitalized interest of $63.0 million and

$18.4 million as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively

Total satellite and related ground systems depreciation expense was $54.1 million $53.4 million and $46.8 million

for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

11 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The following table contains details related to the recorded goodwill of our reporting units for the years
ended

December 31 2011 and 2010 in thousands

GeoEye Analytics

37304

37304

938
2500
33866

In 2011 the Company made purchase price adjustments to reduce the goodwill balance related to GeoEye Analytics

by $0.9 million Additionally during the Companys annual impairment testing of goodwill we determined that the carrying

value of our GeoEye Analytics reporting unit exceeded the fair value and resulted in $2.5 million impairment charge

recorded within continuing operations The impairment charge is primarily due to lower than expected performance in 2011

and corresponding reduction to our originally projected near-term growth rate As of December 31 2011 the accumulated

goodwill impairment losses were $2.5 million

Property plant and equipment excluding satellites and related ground systems consisted of the following at

December 31 2011 and 2010 in thousands

Depreciation expense related to property plant and equipment was $12.6 million $9.2 million and $7.7 million for

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively In addition an impairment of $0.7 million was recorded in

depreciation expense in the year ended December 31 2011 related to property plant and equipment

10 Satellites and Related Ground Systems

Satellites and related ground systems consisted of the following at December 31 2011 and 2010 in thousands

2010

414158

89268

118198

385228

311898

697126

Net goodwill at December 31 2009

Goodwill acquired

Net goodwill at December 31 2010

Goodwill adjustment

Goodwill impairment

Net goodwill at December 31 2011

GeoEye Inc

34264

34264

34264

Total

34264

37304

71568

938
2500
68130
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Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31 2011 and 2010 in thousands

Weighted Gross Net Gross Net

Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Life Amount Amortization Value Amount Amortization Value

Contracts/customer

relationships 8.3 21291 12444 8847 22671 10241 12430

Developedtechnology 5.0 2000 417 1583 2000 2000
Trade names 2.0 1473 1377 96 2293 1785 508

Patentsandother 5.0 3396 3396 3396 3391
Intangible assets net 28160 17634 10526 30360 15417 14943

Total amortization expense related to intangible assets was $3.5 million $2.6 million and $2.7 million for the years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively In addition an impairment of $0.9 million was recorded in

amortization
expense

in the year ended December 31 2011 related to intangible assets Estimated future amortization

expense related to intangible assets at December 31 2011 is as follows in thousands

For the Year Ending December 31
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016 and thereafter

Total expected future amortization 10526

12 Income Taxes

We file consolidated U.S federal income tax return with our wholly owned subsidiaries The components of our

income tax Qrovision benefit are as follows in thousands

Current @rovision benefit

Federal

State

Total current provision benefit

Deferred provision benefit

Federal

State

Total deferred provision benefit

Total provision benefit for income taxes

provision are as follows in thousands

Federal tax at statutory rate

State income taxes net

Permanent items

Change in valuation allowance

Change in state effective rate and other

Restored net operating losses

Research credits

Unrecognized tax benefits adjustment

Total provision benefit for income taxes

2011 2010 2009

12$ 10$ 19893

3317

12 10 23210

31361 20266 3296
1940 3076 2341

33301 23342 5637
33313 23352 17573

2011 2010 2009

31474$ 16796$ 5071
3104 2316 295
1105 9321
1298 230 121

445 363 37

21419

6195 7995 515

2082 2321 1089

33313 23352 17573

2011 2010

3189

3095

3095

1147

The differences between the tax provision calculated at the statutory U.S income tax rate and the actual tax
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The components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows at December 31 2011 and 2010 in

thousands

2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Deferredrevenue 7023 75874

Accruals and reserves 6171 5741

Goodwill and intangibles 21

Net operating losses 105456 56412

Credit carryforwards net 10101 7430

Deferred equity compensation 6786 4032

Other 100 454

Total gross deferred tax assets 135658 149943

Less valuation allowance 1834 536
Deferred tax assets 133824 149407

Deferred tax liabilities

IRC 481a adjustment 600 18555
Goodwill and intangibles 1131
Property plant and equipment 195356 157455
Other 414 258

Total deferred tax liabilities 196370 177399

Net deferred tax liabilities 62546 27992

The total federal and state net operating loss carryforwards are approximately $276.2 million and $150.0 million for

2011 and 2010 The net operating loss carryforwards will expire between tax years 2024 and 2031 Certain net operating loss

carryforwards that were generated at various dates prior to November 2004 prior to December 2010 for GeoEye Analytics

Inc acquired net operating loss carryforwards are subject to limitations on their use pursuant to Internal Revenue Code

Section 382 or Section 382 as result of ownership changes as defined by Section 382 However we do not expect these

assets to expire unused

As of December 31 2011 we had tax credit carryforwards of approximately $10.1 million of which $8.8 million

expire on various dates through 2026 Certain business tax credit carryforwards that were generated at various dates prior to

December 2008 are subject to limitations on their use pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code or IRC However we do not

expect these business tax credits to expire unused

The statutes of limitation for income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions for tax

years 2006 through 2010 have not expired and thus these years
remain subject to examination by the Internal Revenue

Service or IRS and state jurisdictions Significant state jurisdictions that remain subject to examination include Colorado

and Missouri for tax years 2006 through 2010 and Virginia for tax years
2007 through 2010 For tax years for which we are

no longer subject to federal state and local tax examinations by tax authorities the tax attribute carryforwards generated from

these years may still be adjusted upon examination by tax authorities

In May 2011 the Company finalized its method of tax accounting for the NextView cost-share payments with the

IRS to allow the NextView cost-share payments to be treated for tax purposes
the same as for book purposes Amounts

received from the U.S government are now recorded as deferred revenue when received and recognized as revenue on

straight-line basis over the useful life of the satellite rather than when the Company was entitled to receive these payments

from the U.S government The change in tax accounting method resulted in reclassification of deferred tax items related to

deferred revenues and IRC 481a adjustments into net operating losses and will have no material impact on cash flow or

earnings

Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance when in the opinion of our management it is more likely

than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized In evaluating our ability to realize deferred tax

assets we consider all available evidence both positive and negative Accordingly we consider past operating results

forecasts of earnings and taxable income the reversal of temporary differences and any prudent and feasible tax planning

strategies Management believes the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred

tax asset The change in the valuation allowance during the year is attributable to an additional valuation allowance recorded

against separate company state net operating losses and state research and development credit carryforward amounts

56



reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows in thousands

2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year 1942 24

Additions for tax positions in prior years 397 101

Additions for tax positions in current years 2266 1817

Balance at end of year 4605 1942

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as component of income tax

expense as well as any potential tax liability arising from these positions Interest expense recorded through the income tax

provision benefit related to uncertain tax positions was negligible for the
year

ended December 31 2011 and $0.5 million

for the year ended December 31 2010 Penalties
expense recorded through the income tax provision benefit related to

uncertain tax positions were negligible for each of the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

The amount of accrued interest in the consolidated balance sheet associated with uncertain tax positions was

negligible at December 31 2011 and $0.6 million at December 31 2010 The amount of accrued penalties in the consolidated

balance sheet associated with uncertain tax positions was negligible for both periods

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would benefit the effective tax rate as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 is $4.6 million and $1.9 million respectively The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits

anticipated to result in net decrease to unrecognized tax benefits within 12 months of December 31 2011 is estimated to be

negligible

13 Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses consisted of the following at December 31 2011 and 2010 in thousands

2011 2010

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 18054 17246

Accrued payroll 16410 14660

Accrued expenses subcontractors 10718 25912
Accrued interest payable 12320 12111

Dividends payable 1008 1007

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses 58510 70936

14 Long-Term Debt

On October 2010 the Company issued $125.0 million aggregate principal of 8.625 percent Senior Secured Notes

due 2016 or the 2016 Notes in publicly registered offering Interest payments on the 2016 Notes are due semi-annually in

arrears on April and October of each year At any time on or after October 2013 the Company may on one or more

occasions redeem all or part of the 2016 Notes at 104.313 percent of principal for the subsequent 12-month period at

102.156 percent of principal on October 2014 for the subsequent 12-month period and at 100 percent of principal on

October 2015 and thereafter

The 2016 Notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on secured second-priority basis by all

existing and future domestic restricted subsidiaries of the Company The 2016 Notes and the guarantees are secured by lien

on substantially all of the assets of the Company and the guarantors Except for minor investment in foreign subsidiary

the Company does not have any independent assets or operations other than its ownership in all of the capital stock of its

subsidiaries Since inception all of the Companys operations have been conducted through its wholly owned subsidiaries

On October 2009 the Company issued $400.0 million aggregate principal net of original issue discount of $20.0

million of 9.625 percent Senior Secured Notes due 2015 or the 2015 Notes Interest is payable on the 2015 Notes semi

annually in arrears on April and October of each year At any time on or after October 2013 the Company may on one

or more occasions redeem all or part of the 2015 Notes at 104.813 percent of principal for the subsequent 12-month period

and at 100 percent of principal on October 2014 and thereafter Proceeds from the sale of the 2015 Notes were used in part

to redeem all of our Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes due 2012 or the 2012 Notes

The 2015 Notes are unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on senior secured basis by all existing and

future domestic restricted subsidiaries of the Company The 2015 Notes and the guarantees are secured by lien on

substantially all of the assets of the Company and the guarantors
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The composition of interest expense net is as follows in thousands

For The Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Interest expense 53138 44902 36183

Capitalized interest 44600 16580 4771
Interest income 289 404 392

Total interest expense net 8249 27918 31020

15 Stockholder Rights Plan

On June 2011 the Board of Directors adopted Stockholder Rights Agreement or Rights Agreement between the

Company and Mellon Investor Services LLC as rights agent The rights are designed to ensure that all stockholders receive

fair and equal treatment in the event of any proposed takeover of the Company and to guard against partial tender offers

open market accumulations and other abusive or coercive tactics to gain control of the Company without paying all

stockholders control premium In connection with the adoption of the amended Rights Agreement the Board of Directors

of the Company declared dividend of one preferred stock purchase right or Right for each outstanding share of Common

Stock to stockholders of record as of the close of business on June 22 2011 Subject to certain exceptions the Rights will be

exercisable if person or group of affiliated or associated persons acquires 20 percent or more of the Companys Common

Stock or announces tender offer for 20 percent or more of the Common Stock In the case of tender offer the Board of

Directors may determine later date for the exercise of the Rights unless the person or group that announced the tender offer

acquires 25 percent or more of the Companys Common Stock Under certain circumstances each Right will entitle

stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of share of newly created Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the

Company at an exercise price of $175 The Companys Board of Directors will be entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.00 per

right at any time before person or group has acquired 25 percent or more of the outstanding Common Stock The Rights

currently are not exercisable and are attached to and trade with the outstanding shares of Common Stock The Rights will

expire on June 2012 subject to the Companys right to extend such date unless earlier redeemed or exchanged by the

Company or terminated The Rights will at no time have any voting rights Subject to limited exceptions if person or group

acquired 20 percent or more of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company or announces tender offer for 20 percent or

more of the Common Stock we refer to such person or group as an acquiring person each Right will entitle the Right

holder to purchase at the Rights then-current exercise price number of shares of Common Stock having market value at

that time of twice the Rights exercise price Rights held by the acquiring person will become void and will not be

exercisable If the Company is acquired in merger or other business combination transaction that has not been approved by

the Board of Directors after the Rights become exercisable each Right will entitle its holder to purchase at the Rights then-

current exercise price number of shares of the acquiring companys common stock having market value at that time of

twice the Rights exercise price

On December 2011 the Company entered into an amendment of its Rights Agreement which increased the

percentage of the Companys outstanding stock such that person or group of affiliated or associated persons may

beneficially own before becoming an acquiring person as defined in the amended Rights Agreements from 20 percent to 25

percent

On February 2012 the Company entered into second amendment of its Rights Agreement which increased the

percentage of the Companys outstanding stock such that
person or group of affiliated or associated persons may

beneficially own before becoming an acquiring person as defined in the amended Rights Agreements from 25 percent to 30

percent

16 Convertible Preferred Stock

In March 2010 the Company entered into Stock Purchase Agreement and Note Purchase Agreement with

Cerberus Satellite LLC or Cerberus for the sale of its Series Convertible Preferred Stock or Series Preferred Stock In

September 2010 pursuant to the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement and as result of the EnhancedView award by the

NGA being made without the letter-of-credit requirement Cerberus purchased 80000 shares of Series Preferred Stock

having liquidation preference of $1000 per share This resulted in net proceeds to the Company of $78.0 million after

discounts and before issuance costs The Series Preferred Stock is convertible on issuance at the option of the holders at

conversion rate of $29.76 per common share which is equivalent to conversion rate of 2.7 million shares of common stock

of the Company
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The March 2010 Stock Purchase Agreement represented financial instrument not in the form of share which

contained conditional obligation on the part of the Company to redeem its equity shares by transferring assets in the future

and was therefore presented as liability It was initially and subsequently measured at fair value until Cerberus purchased

the Series Preferred Stock on September 22 2010 During the year ended December 31 2010 the change in the value of

the financial instrument resulted in other non-operating expense of $24.5 million

The Series Preferred Stock represents an ownership interest assuming conversion of such Series Preferred

Stock to the Companys common stock of approximately 11 percent as of December 31 2011 Dividends on the Series

Preferred Stock are payable quarterly in arrears at rate of percent per annum of the liquidation preference of $1000 per

share subject to declaration by the Board of Directors The Company declared dividends on the Series Preferred Stock of

$4.0 million and $1.1 million during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The dividend payable of

$1.0 million was included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of December 31 2011 and 2010

In connection with the February 2012 second amendment to the Stockholder Rights Agreement the Company
entered into standstill letter agreement with Cerberus Capital Management L.P Under the standstill agreement Cerberus

and its affiliates have agreed subject to certain exceptions not to take certain actions with respect to the Company during the

standstill period of February 2012 through the earliest of certain specified events or June 30 2013 including among other

things not to effect or seek to effect any acquisition by the Cerberus parties of beneficial ownership of any securities assets

or businesses of the Company or any of its subsidiaries if upon acquisition the aggregate beneficial ownership of Cerberus

parties of beneficial ownership would exceed 29.99 percent of the number of common shares of the Company that are then

outstanding including the shares of the Companys Series Convertible Preferred Stock on an as converted basis

17 Commitments and Contingencies

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of December 31 2011

Payments due by year

2017 and

Contractual Obligations 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 thereafter Total

in thousands

Long-term debt

obligations 400000 $125000 525000

Interest payments on long-

term debt 49281 49281 49281 49281 10781 207905

Operating lease

obligations 11489 15993 18283 17374 17752 15324 96215

Purchase obligations 144638 26926 840 560 172964

Total contractual

obligations 205408 92200 68404 467215 153533 15324 1002084

Represents contractual interest payment obligations on the $400.0 million outstanding principal balance of our 2015

Notes which bear interest at rate per annum of 9.625% and contractual interest payment obligations on the $125.0

million outstanding principal balance of our 2016 Notes which bear interest at rate per annum of 8.625%

Purchase obligations include all commitments to purchase goods or services of either fixed or minimum quantity

that are enforceable and legally binding As of December 31 2011 purchase obligations include EnhancedView

related commitments ground systems and communication services

Operating Leases

We have commitments for operating leases primarily relating to office and operating facilities and equipment We
lease various real properties under operating leases that generally require us to pay taxes insurance maintenance and

minimum lease payments These leases contain escalation provisions for increases as result of increases in real estate taxes

and operating expenses We recognize rent expense under such leases on straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Substantially all of these leases have lease terms ranging from three to twelve years Some of our leases have options to

renew

Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was

approximately $4.4 million $3.3 million and $2.2 million respectively
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Contingencies

GeoEye from time to time may be party to various lawsuits legal proceedings and claims arising in the normal

course of business The Company cannot predict the outcome of these lawsuits legal proceedings and claims with certainty

Nevertheless the Company believes that the outcome of any existing or known threatened proceedings even if determined

adversely should not have material adverse impact on the Companys financial results liquidity or operations

18 Employee Benefit Plan

The GeoEye Retirement Savings Plan or the Plan is combination employee savings plan and discretionary profit-

sharing plan that covers most GeoEye employees The Plan qualifies under section 401k of the IRC Under the Plan

participating employees may elect to voluntarily contribute on pre-tax basis between percent and 100 percent of their

salary up to the annual maximum established by the IRC Participating employees may also elect to contribute on an after-tax

basis between percent and 10 percent of their salary up to the annual maximum established by the IRC Participants are

always 100 percent vested in their accounts Our matching contributions to the Plan are based on certain Plan provisions and

at the discretion of the Board of Directors Other than our matching obligations profit sharing contributions are discretionary

The matching annual contribution expense was $1.6 million $1.4 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

19 Stock Incentive Plans

Employee Stock Plans

We adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan or ESPP on July 2008 The ESPP allows eligible employees to

purchase common stock at not less than 85 percent of the closing fair market value of share of the common stock on the

purchase date The ESPP is considered to be compensatory as defined under current FASB accounting guidance Unless

modified by the ESPP administrator each offering period under the ESPP will last six months and begin on January and

July The purchase price is established on each new purchase date Purchases are limited to 10 percent of each employees

eligible compensation and subject to certain IRS restrictions In general all of our regular full-time employees are eligible to

participate in the ESPP The ESPP provides for maximum of 500000 shares in the aggregate to be issued Of the 100000

shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the ESPP 64815 shares have been issued as of December 31 2011

Stock Incentive Plans

In September 2006 the stockholders approved the 2006 Omnibus Stock and Performance Incentive Plan or the

2006 Plan which provides for the granting of maximum of 1.7 million shares of the Companys Common Stock in the form

of equity and cash awards including stock options stock appreciation rights nonvested stock unrestricted stock stock units

and restricted stock units The 2006 Plan was adopted to replace the Companys 2003 Employee Stock Incentive Plan

In June 2010 the stockholders approved the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan or the 2010 Plan which provides for the

granting of maximum of 1.45 million additional shares of the Companys Common Stock subject to adjustment as

provided in the 2010 Plan to participants under the 2010 Plan in the form of equity and cash awards including stock options

stock appreciation rights nonvested stock restricted stock units deferred stock units performance-based and other share-

based awards

During 2011 we granted awards only under the 2010 Plan Although future awards will be granted under the 2010

Plan we currently have outstanding awards subject to vesting and or available for exercise under all three of our stock

incentive plans

We accounted for our stock incentive plan using the modified prospective method as of January 2006 We
recognize stock-based compensation expense based on the estimated grant date fair value over the requisite service period of

the award During 2011 2010 and 2009 we recognized $10.5 million $6.9 million and $2.4 million of stock-based

compensation expense respectively Stock-based compensation expense of $3.4 million is included in direct costs of

revenue and $7.1 million is included in selling general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statement of

operations for the year ended December 31 2011 In addition $1.1 million of stock-based compensation has been included in

satellites and related ground systems

Stock Options

Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Companys stock on the

date of grant
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Valuation Assumptions

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
The estimated forfeiture rate is based on the Companys historical experience of actual forfeitures Information pertaining to

stock options granted during the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 and related assumptions are noted in the

following table

Volatility

Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

Expected average life

Exercise price per option

Weighted average fair value of options

granted during the
year

Expected Dividend Yield We have not issued dividends on our common stock in the past nor do we expect to issue

dividends in the future as such the dividend yield used was zero

Expected Volatility The expected volatility was determined using combination of implied volatility based on

exchange-traded options for our shares and actual historical volatility calculated over period that we believe is

representative of the expected future volatility over the expected term We determined that blended volatility is more

reflective of market conditions and better indicator of expected volatility than historical volatility The options generally

have graded vesting over four years 25 percent of the options in each grant vest annually and the contractual term is either

eight or ten years

Risk-free Interest Rate The yield on actively traded non-inflation indexed U.S Treasury notes was used to

extrapolate an average risk-free interest rate based on the expected term of the underlying grants

Expected Term The expected term of options granted was determined based on historical experience of similar

awards giving consideration to contractual terms of the awards vesting schedules and expectations of future employee

behavior The options had graded vesting over four years 25 percent of the options in each grant vest annually and the

contractual term was eight or ten years

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the year ended December 31 2011 in thousands except

exercise price and contractual term data

Weighted Average-

Remaining

Contractual Term

__________ ______________ ___________ in_Years

Outstanding at January 2011

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/Canceled
_________

Outstanding December 31 2011
_________

Exercisable at December 31 2011

Vested and expected to vest at December 31
2011

The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2011 2010 and 2009 was $1.1 million $2.2 million and $1.1 million

respectively As of December 31 2011 there was $5.6 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to nonvested

stock option awards That cost net of forfeitures is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of 2.53 years

The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $2.4 million $1.5

million and $1.0 million respectively

For The Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

41.54% 58.30% 41.84% 52.75% 75.93% 83.59%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

1.08% 2.74% 1.77% 3.69% 1.90% 3.39%

5.90 6.80 years 5.90 6.90 years 5.22 6.25 years

$19.01 -$42.04 $23.91 -$44.68 $l9.52-$32.69

$19.13 $14.67 $15.84

Number Weighted- Aggregate

of Average Intrinsic

Shares Exercise Price Value

908 21.67

155 40.11

56 19.54

26 28.05

981 24.54 2679

510 18.63 2569

966 24.44 2676

5.80

4.75

5.78
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Nonvested Stock

In 2011 we granted total of 157454 shares of nonvested stock This included grants of 116321 shares of nonvested

stock at grant price of $41.30 to employees for exceptional performance and ii total of 41133 shares granted at prices

from $19.01 to $44.55 per share to employees executives and consultants for range
of purposes including promotions

new hire incentives and consulting services

summary of the status of our nonvested shares as of December 31 2011 and changes during the year are presented

below in thousands except fair value price data

Number of Weighted-Average

Nonvested Stock Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Nonvested at January 12011 518 32.72

Granted 157 39.51

Vested 114 30.75

Forfeited/Canceled 45 37.53

Nonvested at December 31 2011 516 34.79

As of December 31 2011 there was $10.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested

share-based compensation arrangements granted under the stock incentive plans That cost is expected to be recognized over

weighted-average period of 2.44 years The total fair value of shares vested during the
years

ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009 was $3.5 million $0.3 million and $1.5 million respectively

Restricted Stock Units

In 2011 we granted 93858 restricted stock units to executive officers as part of Long Term Incentive Plan or

LTIP Restricted stock unit awards under the LTIP have both performance and service requirements with vesting periods of

two to three years with the exception that 15177 units granted in 2011 may vest earlier than two years from the grant date

provided certain performance metrics are met All units granted vest if at all between 2012 and 2014 depending on

performance measured at the end of the agreement term at which time the vested units are converted into shares of common

stock

summary of the status of our nonvested shares as of December 31 2011 and changes during the year
is presented

below in thousands except fair value price data

Number of Weighted-Average

Nonvested Restricted Stock Units Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

NonvestedatJanuaryl2011 191 24.91

Granted 94 37.77

Vested 22 16.98

Forfeited/Canceled 26.01

Nonvested at December 31 2011 256 30.27

The fair value of each restricted stock unit award is calculated using the share price at the date of grant We

recognize compensation cost ratably over the requisite service period based on the achievement of the performance

conditions and the estimated expected payout each reporting period As of December 31 2011 there was $3.2 million of total

unrecognized compensation cost related to the nonvested restricted stock units That cost is expected to be recognized over

weighted-average period of 1.31 years The total fair value of units vested during the year ended December 31 2011 was

$0.4 million

Deferred Stock Units

Under the current non-employee director compensation plan each January non-employee directors receive annual

grants of deferred stock units valued at $60000 Deferred stock units vest in two installments at six months after grant and at

twelve months after grant Deferred stock units are settled in shares of the Companys common stock six months after the

non-employee directors separation from Board service
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summary of the status of our nonvested shares as of December 31 2011 and changes during the
year is presented

below in thousands except fair value price data

Number of Weighted-Average

Deferred Stock Units Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Balance at January 2011 87 21.86

Granted 13 42.20

Forfeited/Canceled 42.20

Balance at December31 2011 99 24.35

20 Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies authoritative accounting guidance for fair value measurements of financial and nonfinancial

assets and liabilities The guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received in the sale of an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The guidance requires

disclosure of the extent to which fair value is used to measure financial assets and liabilities the inputs utilized in calculating

valuation measurements and the effect of the measurement of significant unobservable inputs on earnings or changes in net

assets as of the measurement date There is an established hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes

the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be

used when available Three levels of inputs may be used to measure fair value

Level quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data

Level unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available

GeoEyes financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents available-for-sale short-term investments

restricted cash accounts receivable accounts payable accrued
expenses and debt The carrying amounts of cash and cash

equivalents available-for-sale short-term investments restricted cash accounts receivable accounts payable and accrued

expenses approximate their respective fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments

The following table provides information about the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 in thousands

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

amount fair value amount fair value

Available-for-sale securites 9220 9220 10000 10000

Senior Secured Notes due 2016 125000 127970 125000 131250

Senior Secured Notes due 2015 386019 446560 383160 452000

We classified the above instruments as Level instruments due to the usage of market prices not quoted on active

markets and other observable market data

During our annual goodwill impairment testing we used Level inputs to determine an implied fair value of $33.9

million for the goodwill of the GeoEye Analytics reporting unit at December 31 2011

21 Significant Customer and Geographic Information

The Company operates in single industry segment in which it provides Earth imagery imagery information

products and image-processing services to customers around the world

GeoEye recognized revenue related to contracts with the U.S government the Companys largest customer of

$227.8 million $218.6 million and $181.9 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 representing 64

percent 66 percent and 67 percent of total revenues respectively We had no other customers for whom revenues exceeded

10 percent of total revenues in 2011 2010 and 2009

The Company has two product and service lines Imagery including the NextView cost-share and

Production and Other Services
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Total revenues by these lines were as follows in thousands

Imagery

NextView cost-share

Production and other services

Total revenues

For The Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

256280 249698 206417

24153 24153 21062

75974 56494 43623

356407 330345 $271102

Total domestic and international revenues were as follows in thousands

Domestic

International

Total revenues

For The Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

263828 244826 196722

92579 85519 74380

356407 330345 $271102

Our property plant and equipment and related ground systems are held domestically

22 Summary of Quarterly Information Unaudited

Quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31

thousands except per share amounts

Revenues

Income from operations

Net income

Net income available to common stockholders

Earnings per share basic

Earnings per share diluted

Revenues

Income from operations

Net income loss

Net income loss available to common stockholders

Earnings loss per share basic

Earnings loss per share diluted

2010_Quarters

First Second Third

Unaudited

80961 86452

24276 29148

12149 6376
12149 6475

0.56 0.30

0.55 0.30

Net income loss available to common stockholders and earnings loss per
share are computed individually for each of

the quarters presented therefore the sum of the quarterly net income loss available to common stockholders and

earnings loss per share may not necessarily equal the total for the year

In the fourth quarter of 2011 as result of the Companys annual impairment testing of goodwill $2.5 million

impairment charge was recorded within continuing operations for the excess of the carrying value of goodwill over the

implied fair value of goodwill for GeoEye Analytics

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

2011 and 2010 is summarized below in

2011 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth

Unaudited

86626 87206 85769 96806

24194 23592 23759 26629

12247 13409 14088 16868

10037 11067 11664 14144

0.46 0.50 0.53 0.64

0.44 0.49 0.51 0.62

80389

26504
774

774

0.04

0.04

Fourth

82543

23694

18090

15211

0.70

0.68
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Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31 2011 we carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our

disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 3a- 15b as adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission or

the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or the Exchange Act This evaluation was carried out

under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer Disclosure controls and procedures are the controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that

information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms Disclosure controls and procedures

include without limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the

reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief

Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Based on their evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of

December 31 2011 the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 0-K our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e under the Exchange Act were effective

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Rule 3a- 15f under the Exchange Act

Internal control over financial reporting refers to process designed by or under the supervision of our Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and effected by our Board of Directors management and other personnel The

process provides reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of our assets

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that our receipts and expenditures

are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and members of our Board of

Directors and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our consolidated financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting has inherent limitations Internal control over financial reporting is process

that involves human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human

failures Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management override

Because of such limitations there is risk that material misstatements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis by

internal control over financial reporting However these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting

process Therefore it is possible to design into the
process safeguards to reduce though not eliminate this risk

Management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 using the framework set forth in the

report of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission or COSO in Internal Control

Integrated Framework

Based on managements assessment using the COSO criteria management has concluded that the Companys
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2011

KPMG LLP an independent registered public accounting firm that audited and reported on our consolidated

financial statements included in this annual report has also audited the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 as stated in their report which appears on page 40 of this Form 10-K under the

heading Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In addition management carried out an evaluation as required by Rule 3a- 15d of the Exchange Act under

supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of changes in the Companys internal control over

financial reporting Based on this evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that there

were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal year that have

materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting We
believe that our disclosure controls and procedures were operating effectively as of December 31 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GeoEye Inc

We have audited GeoEye Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO GeoEye Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Item 9Ab Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

In our opinion GeoEye Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of GeoEye Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related

consolidated statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended December 31 2011 and our report dated March 13 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated

financial statements

/s/ KPMG LLP

McLean Virginia

March 13 2012
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Proposal 1Election of Directors

Corporate Governance Committees of the Board of Directors and Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance in our Proxy Statement

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Executive Compensation Committee Report Compensation Tables and Compensation of Directors in our Proxy

Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners and Management and Compensation Tables in our Proxy Statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions and Corporate Governance in our Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Independent Registered Public Accountants

in our Proxy Statement

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

An index to exhibits has been filed as part of this Annual Report beginning on page 70 and is incorporated herein by

reference

68



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

March 13 2012

GeoEye Inc

By /s/ Matthew OConnell

Matthew OConnell

ChiefExecutive Officer

Signature

Is James Abrahamson

James Abrahamson

/5/ Matthew OConnell

Matthew OConnell

Is Joseph Greeves

Joseph Greeves

Jeanine Montgomery

Jeanine Montgomery

Table

Chairman of the Board

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Vice President Accounting and Corporate Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Joseph Ahearn

Joseph Ahearn

/s/ Michael P.C Cams

Michael P.C Cams

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

/s/ James Simon Jr

James Simon Jr

Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in capacities indicated on March 13 2012

/s/ Martin Faga

Martin Faga

Is Michael Horn Sr

Michael Horn Sr

Is Lawrence Hough

Lawrence Hough

Is Roberta Lenczowski

Roberta Lenczowski
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Filed

Exhibit No Exhibit Description Form SEC File No Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

3.ia Certificate of Incorporation of the Company as S-i 333-122493 3.1 06/21/05

filed with the Secretary of the State of Delaware

3.lb Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of 10-K 001-33015 3.1 03115/07

Incorporation of the Company as filed with the

Secretary of the State of Delaware

3.2 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of 8-K 001-33015 3.2 11/06/07

Company

3.3 Certificate of Designations Preferences and 8-K 001-33015 4.1 09/24/10

Rights of Series Convertible Preferred Stock of

the Company as filed with the Secretary of the

State of Delaware

3.4 Certificate of Designations Preferences and

Rights of Series Junior Participating Preferred

Stock of the Company as filed with the Secretary

of the State of Delaware

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate S-8 333-142758 4.4 05/09/07

4.2 Indenture dated as of October 2009 between 10-K 001-33015 4.14 03/12/10

the Subsidiary Guarantors and The Bank of New

York Mellon as Trustee relating to the 9.625%

Senior Secured Notes due 2015

4.3 Form of 9.625% Senior Secured Note due 2015 10-K 001-33015 4.15 03/12/10

4.4 Security Agreement dated as of October 2009 10-K 001-33015 4.16 03/12/10

between the Subsidiary Guarantors and The Bank

of New York Mellon as Collateral Agent

4.5 Indenture dated as of October 2010 between 8-K 001-33015 4.1 10/12/10

the Subsidiary Guarantors and Wilmington Trust

FSB as Trustee relating to the 8.625% Senior

Secured Notes due 2016

4.6 Form of Intercreditor Agreement by and among S-3 333-169706 4.6 10/01/10

The Bank of New York Mellon Wilmington

Trust FSB the Company and the grantors named

therein

4.7 Form of 8.625% Senior Secured Note due 2016 S-3 333-169706 4.6 10/01/10

4.8 Rights Agreement dated as of June 82011 8-K 001-33015 4.1 6/10/11

between GeoEye Inc and Mellon Investor

Services LLC operating with the service name

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services including the

Form of Rights Certificate and the Summary of

Rights to Purchase Preferred Shares attached

thereto as Exhibits and respectively
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Incorporated by Reference

Filed

Exhibit No Exhibit Description Form SEC File No Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

First Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as

4.9 of December 11 2011 between GeoEye Inc 8-K 001-33015 4.1 12/12/11

and Mellon Investor Services LLC

Second Amendment to Rights Agreement dated

as of February 2012 between GeoEye Inc
4.10 8-K 001-33015 4.1 02/13/12

and Computershare Shareowner Services LLC

f/kla Mellon Investor Services LLC

10
2006 Onmibus Stock and Performance Incentive

10-K 001-33015 10.1 03/15/07
Plan Of ORBIMAGE Holdings Inc

0.2a Employment-at-Will and Retention Agreement
10- 12G 000-50933 10.6 09/13/04

for Matthew OConnell

Amendment to Amendment to Employment

lO.2b Agreement By and between Matthew
10-K 001-33015 10.2b 3/15/11

OConnell and GeoEye Inc as effective October

27 2003

10.3a
Employment-at-Will Agreement for William

S-i 333-122493 10.15 02/02/05
Schuster

Amendment to Amendment to Employment

10.3b Agreement By and between William Schuster and 10-K 001-330 15 i0.2b 3/15/11

GeoEye Inc as effective December 2004

10.4 Employment Agreement for Joseph Greeves 10-Q 001-33015 10.1 08/10/09

Employment Letter Agreement with William
10-K 001-33015 10.5a 3/15/110.5a

Warren

GeoEye Inc Amendment to the Terms and

10.5b Conditions of Employment of William Warren 10-K 001-33015 i0.5b 3/15/11

dated as of December 24 2008

0.6a Employment Letter Agreement with Brian
10-K 001-33015 0.6a 3/15/11

OToole
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Incorporated by Reference

Filed

Exhibit No Exhibit Description Form SEC File No Exhibit Fifing Date Herewith

GeoEye Inc Amendment to the Terms and

10.6b Conditions of Employment of Brian OToole 10-K 001-33015 10.6b 3/15/11

dated as of December 24 2008

Form of Indemnity Agreements for Directors and
10-12G 000-50933 10.10 09/13/0410.7

Executive Officers

Contract No HM1573-04-C-0003 with U.S
10-12G 000-50933 10.12 01/28/0510.8

National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency

Contract No HM1 573-04-3-0001 with U.S
10-12G 000-50933 10.13 01/28/0510.9

National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency

Contract No HM1573-04-3-0014 with U.S
10-12G 000-50933 10.14 01/28/0510.1

National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency

Modification P00015 to Contract HM1 73-04-C-

10.1 0014 of existing NextView contract with NGA 10-K 001-33015 10.9 04/02/09

on December 2008

2009 Annual Performance Award Policy to 2006

10.12 Omnibus Stock and Performance Incentive Plan 10-K 001-33015 10.10 04/02/09

Of ORBIMAGE Holdings Inc

Modification P00023 to Contract HM1 73-04-C-

10.13 0014 of existing NextView contract with NGA 10-K 001-33015 10.11 03/12/10

on December 2008

Modification P0002 to Contract HMI 73-04-C-

10 14 0014 of existing NextView contract with NGA 10-K 001-33015 10.12 03/12/10

on December 2008

Modification P00028 to Contract HM1573-04-C-

10.1 0014 of existing NextView contract with NGA 10-K 001-33015 10.13 03/12/10

on December 2008

10 16
Contract No HMO21O-10-C-003 with U.S

National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency
10-Q 001-33015 10.1 11/09/10
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Incorporated by Reference

Filed

Exhibit No Exhibit Description Form SEC File No Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

10 17
Contract No HM0210-10-9-0001 with U.S

10- 001 33015 10 11/09/10
National Geospatial-Intelligence Agency

Modification P00034 to Contract HM1 73-04-C-

10.18a 0014 of existing NextView contract with NGA 10-Q 001-33015 10.15 08/09/10

on December 2008

Modification P00032 to Contract

10.18b HM157304C0014 of NextView contract with 8-K 001-33015 10.1 06/09/10

NGA dated June 2010

Modification P00009 to Contract No HMO2 10-

10.19a 10-C-003 with U.S National Geospatial- 10-Q 001-33015 10.1 11/01/11

Intelligence Agency

Modification P00011 to Contract No HMO2 10-

10.1 9b 0-C-003 with U.S National Geospatial- 10-Q 001-33015 10.2 11/01/11

Intelligence Agency

Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 22

10.20 2010 between GeoEye Inc and Cerberus 8-K 001-33015 10.1 3/26/10

Satellite LLC

Standstill Agreement dated as of February

10.21 2012 by and between GeoEye Inc and Cerberus 8-K 001-33015 10.1 02/13/12

Capital Management L.P

10.22a GeoEye Inc 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan 10-K 001-33015 10.22 3/15/11

l0.22b
Amendment to GeoEye Inc 2010 Omnibus

10-Q 001-33015 10.1 8/2/11
Incentive Plan

2010 Annual Performance Award Policy to 2006

10.23 Omnibus Stock and Performance Incentive Plan 10-K 001-33015 10.23 3/15/11

Of ORBIMAGE Holdings Inc

10.24 Key Employee Change in Control Severance
8-K 001-33015 99.4 4/16/07

Plan

10 25 2011 Aimual Performance Award Policy to 2010

Omnibus Incentive Plan Of GeoEye Inc
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Incorporated by Reference

Filed

Exhibit No Exhibit Description Form SEC File No Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23
Consent of KPMG LLP Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

Certification of the Companys ChiefExecutive

31.1 Officer Matthew OConnell pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Companys Chief Financial

31.2 Officer Joseph Greeves pursuant to Section

302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Companys Chief Executive

32.1 Officer Matthew OConnell pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Companys Chief Financial

32.2 Officer Joseph Greeves pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on our Common Stock

during the period December 31 2006 to December 31 2011 with the cumulative total return on the NASDAQ Global

Market Index and with selected
peer group consisting of us and other companies we deem to be comparable The peer

group consists of the following publicly traded technology and government contracting companies AeroVironment Inc
Costar Group Inc Cubic Corporation DigitalGiobe Inc Neustar Inc Trimble Navigation Limited Tyler Technologies

Inc and Viasat Inc The peer group is consistent with that in our 2010 Form 10-K with the exception of the removal of

Applied Signal Technology Inc and Savvis Inc from the peer group This graph assumes the investment of $100 on

December 31 2006 in our Common Stock the NASDAQ Global Select Index and the peer group identified above and ii

assumes that dividends are reinvested

$50

$0

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among GeoEye Inc the NASDAQ Global Select Index and Peer Group

12111

GeoEye Inc NASDAQ Global Select ---Peer Group

100 invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending December 31 2011

ASSUMES $100 iNVESTED ON DECEMBER 31 2006

ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 2011

Base Period

December 31Company/Index Year Ending December 31
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

GeoEye Inc

NASDAQ Global Select

Peer Group

The information under Stock Performance Graph is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is

not to be incorporated by reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended whether made before or after the date of this Form 10-K and irrespective of any general

incorporation language in those filings

$250

$200

$150

12106 121G7 12108 12109 12110

100.00 173.90 99.38 144.08 219.07 114.83

100.00 111.20 66.38 96.77 114.27 113.80

100.00 103.05 70.51 88.01 120.11 133.62



Matthew OConnell

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Joseph Greeves

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer

William Schuster

Chief Operating Officer

William Warren

Executive Vice President General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary

Brian OToole
Chief Technology Officer

Lt General James Abrahamson USAF Ret
Chairman of the Board

Joseph Ahearn

General Michael P.C Cams

Martin Faga
Chairman of the Compensation Committee

Michael Horn Sr

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Lawrence Hough
Chairman of the Nominating and

Governance Committee

Roberta Lenczowski

Chairman of the Risk Committee

Matthew OConnell

James Simon Jr

Chairman of the Strategy Committee

Stock Listing

GeoEye Inc.s common stock is traded on the

NASDAQ Global Market and is listed under

the symbol GEOY

Transfer Agent

Computershare

P.O Box 358015

Pittsburgh PA 15252-8015

or

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City NJ 07310-1900

877.295.8616

TDD for hearing impaired 800.231.5469

Foreign Shareowners 201.680.6578

TDD Foreign Shareowners 201.680.6610

Web Site address

www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/equityaccess

Independent Auditors

KPMG LLP

1676 International Drive

McLean VA 22102

Telephone 703.286.8000

Investor Relations Contact

Randy Scherago

Vice President of Investor Relations

GeoEye

Telephone 703.480.6325

scherago.randy@geoeye.com

or

nvestorrelations@geoeye.com



Eye
Elevating Insight

2325 Dulles Corner Boulevard

Herndon VA 20171

Phone 7034807500

Fax 703.480.8165

7921 Jones Branch Dnve Suite 600

McLean VA 22102

Phone 703.893.3500

Fax 703.8938131

Ti

12076 Grant Street

Thornton CO 80241

Phone 303.2542000

Fax 303.254.2317

1835 Lackland Hill Parkway

St Louis MC 63146

Phone 314.991.3095

Fax 314.99 .4059

5700 Broadmoor Street Suite 800

Mission KS 662022402

Phone 913.981.9600

Prudential Tower Level 14

30 Cecil Street

Singapore 049712

Phone 65 62322970

MIX

FSC responsible sources
Paper from

oorFSC5 G068100j


